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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS
375 GOULDTOWN WOODRUF'F ROAD

BRIDGETON, NEW JERSEY 08302
Phone: (856) 453-1882 Fax: (856) 453-7199

Dr. Michael Knox
SuperintendentÆrincipal

Janecia Smith
Business Administrator

November 15,2017

Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education

Fairfield Township School District
Cumberland County, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Fairfield Township Public School District for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2017, is hereby submitted. Responsibitity for both the accuracy of the data and,
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the
Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the datapresented in this report is accurate in
all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the various funds and account groups of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical
and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's organizational chart
and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general-purpose flrnancial statements and
schedules, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section includes selected financial and
demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District is required to undergo an
annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of Title 2 CFR 200-Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), "Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organtzations" and the State Treasury Circular Letter 15-08
OMB,, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid payments."
Information related to this single audit, including the auditor's report on the internal control structure and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, are included in the
single audit section of this report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

The Fairfield Township Public School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted
by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as established by Statement No. 14. Alt funds and
account groups of the District are included in this report. The Fairfield Township Board of Education and its
two schools constitute the District's reporting entity.

The District provides a fulI range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K through 8. These
include regular, as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. The District completed the 2016-
2017 ftscal year with a June enrollment of 627 students, which is a decrease of 35 students from the previous
year's enrollment of 662. The following details the changes in the student enrollment of the District over the
last ten years.
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June 30 Enrollment

Fiscal
Year

2016-17
2015-t6
20r4-rs
2013-r4
20t2-13
20tt-12
2010-rr
2009-10
2008-09
2007-08

Student
Enrollment

627.0
662.0
626.0
620.0
602.0
613.0
616.0
585.5
625.7
60s.9

Percent
Change

(s.2e)%
5.75%
.96%

3.00%
(1.7e)%
(.32)%
s.2t%

(6.42)%
3.27%
4.21%

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

Fairfield Township continues to be a rwa| community whose main business remains agriculture. The
economic condition of the community is hindered by a poor ratable base and the reality that only 54%o of the
community property is taxable. The remaining 460/o is either wetlands or property under restriction by
Federal and State authority.

Single family housing permits grew significantly in 2006 for the first time in many years, but real growth
remains quite limited and the reality of any increased tax base is offset by additional State and non-profit
purchases. As a result, the community shares in the County problems of high unemployment and a high
welfare presence. The fact that there are two large prisons in the area makes the hope of further growth
speculative.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES:

Preschool: Our preschool program continues to grow due to the positive relationships and rapport built with
families and the community. Research has proven that Early Childhood programs have the potential to
positively impact our children. The NJ state approved Creative Curriculum offers students a program that
offers enrichment and hands on inquiry based experiences in Language Arts, Mathematics, Science, Social
Studies, Social emotional skills, and developmentally pertinent physical activities to promote health and
wellness. According to feedback from the NJ state liaison and NEER, FTS continues to meet and exceed

expectations.

Math: Fairfield Twp School strives to meet and exceed state and dishict achievement expectations. The
district works closely with constituent districts and Cumberland Regional high school to ensure that the math
curriculum is aligned to NJ standards and can meet the rigor of PARCC expectations. Throughout the school
year, students participate in end of cycle benchmarks to track their progress and monitor student progress.

Teachers meet bi-monthly to review data and plan various interventions and strategies to assist gifted andlor
struggling leamers. We have implemented various professional workshops to FTS staff to ensure that staff
can provide and implement best teaching strategies in their instructional practices. Students in 8th grade that
qualiff are able to participate in an Algebra I course before attending high school in preparation for AP or
Algebra at the high school level. The district also offers a suûrmer enrichment and intervention program to
prepare students for the academic rigor via the upcoming school year at FTS, high school, or technical
school.
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Literacy: Fairfield Twp School strives to meet and exceed state and district achievement expectations. The
district works closely with constituent districts and Cumberland Regional high school to ensure that the math
curriculum is aligned to NJ standards and can meet the rigor of PARCC expectations. Throughout the school
year, students participate in end of cycle benchmarks to track their progress and monitor student progress.
Teachers meet bi-monthly to review data and plan various interventions and strategies to assist gifted andlor
struggling learners. We have implemented various professional workshops to FTS staff to ensure that staff
can provide and implement best teaching strategies in their instructional practices. The district also offers a
summer enrichment and intervention program to prepare students for the academic rigor via the upcoming
school year atFTS, high school, or technical school.

Child Study Team and Special Education:In20l6-2017, the district formed a shared services contract with
Hopewell Crest for their Child Study Team Director. Throughout the summer, the Hopewell CST director
collaborated with the Fairfield team to recruit, interview, and select the 2016-2017 CST staff as well as
develop two SE classroom programs. The district has hired a fuIl-time school psychologist, contracted with a
social worker (3-4 days a week), and leaming disabled teacher consultant(s) (S-10 hours a weeþ. Over the
course of the next month the CST will continue to review polices, IEPs, and prepare PD presentations that
will orientate the disfict staff to in-house CST and SE programs.

Facilities: Fairfield Township School facilities accommodate students in grades PK-8. In addition, the district
re-opened the athletic field during the 2016-2017 school years. The f,reld offers additional physical
educational program activities such as tennis, basketball, track, soccer, and other sports related activities. In
addition, the field is open to the community after school hours and this has strengthened the relationship with
the community.

Information Technology: The vision of Fairfield Township School is to implement a technology model that
articulates the use of technology in all aspects of the school district. This includes classrooms that are
interactive, flexible and ready for collaboration, audiovisual equipment, teaching aides and high-speed
networks to enhance learning and the classroom experience. Fairfield's vision includes' the use of mobile
laptop carts in the classroom to enhance instruction. Fairfield Township will use educational software, web-
based resources and instructional technology research for curriculum integration. As part of the technology
initiatives Fairfield Township have begun working towards these goals over the summer

4. INTERNAL ACCOT]NTING CONTROLS:

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control designed to
ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Intemal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that these objectives are meL The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1)
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal awards and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring
that adequate internal control is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to
those programs. Internal control is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of internal
control, including that portion related to federal awards and state flrnancial assistance programs, as well as to
determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.
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5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these
budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget
approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund,
the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital
improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal
year is reflected in the f,rnancial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-appropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as reservations of fund
balance at June 30,2017.

6. ACCOT]NTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS:

The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on
the basis of funds and account groups. These funds and account groups are explained in "Notes to the
Financial Statements," Note 1.

7. DEBT ADMINISTRATION:

On December 8,2009, the voters of the school district approved a referendum to construct an addition, as
well as undertake various improvements, acquire equipment and make renovations to the elementary school.
The total amount approved was $3,984,V72, of which 81,984,772 was funded by a grant from the State of
New Jersey and the remaining $2,000,000 was funded through the issuance of bonds at various interest rates.
Principal payments of bonds in the amount of $90,000 were made during the2016-17 fiscalyear, resulting in
abalance in bonds payable as of June 30,2017 of $1,465,000.

On September 15, 2014 the District refunded $3,150,000 in Bonds Payable from the March 15, 2004
Construction of the new Elementary/lvliddle School, resulting in a net savings of $56,000. Principal
payments in the amount of $280,000 were made during the 2016-17, resulting in a balance in these bonds
payable as of June 30,2017 of $2,290,000.

8. CASH MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in "Notes to the
Financial Statements," Note 3. The District has adopted a cash management plan, which requires it to
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental
Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from
a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental
units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured
in accordance with the Act.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability, automobile
liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and fidelity
bonds.
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10. OTHER INFORMATTON:

fndependent Audit - State statutes rcquire an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or
registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Nightlinger, Colavita and Volpa, Pa. was appointed

by the Boarcl. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in State statutes, the audit also was designed to

meet the requirements of the Title 2 CFR 200-Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and

Audit Requhements for Federal Awards (Unifonn Guidance), and State of New Jersey Trcasury Citcular 15-

08 OMB, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Gmnts, State Grants and State Aid. The auditor's repoft
on the basic financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules are included in
the financial section of this rcport. The auclitor's repoft related specifically to the single audit arç included in the

single audit section ofthis repott.

1 I. ACI$IO\4/LEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Fairfielcl Tor,vnship School Boatd for theit
concern in providing frscal accor.lntability to the citizens and taxpayers of the public school district and

thercby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The

preparation of this repolt could not have been accomplished rvithout the efficient and dedicated selvices of
our financial and accounting staff. We received the cornplete coopetation fìom Nightlinger, Colavita &
Volpa, P.A. and appreciate the courtesies extended to us.

Respectful ly Submitted,

ìlt
rL,,t 'þø
or. Michalts'nox
S uperintendent/Principal

Respectfu lly Submitted,

w_*w
Janeciasmirh / 

' ''--ì

Business Administrator
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November I5.20I7

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Fairfield Township School District
County of Cumberland, New Jersey

Report on the X'inancial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the
Fairfield Township School District in the County of Cumberland, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Fairfield
Township School District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that arc free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Administration and Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
fi nancial statement presentation.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Fairfield Township Board of Education in the County of Cumberland, State of
New Jersey, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters

Re quire d Supplement ary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the marìagement's discussion and
analysis, budgetary comparison information and schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions be presented

to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic f,rnancial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures

do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the

Fairfield Township School Board of Education's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and

individual non-major fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis

and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal

awards and state financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Title 2 U.S.

Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements

for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards

and state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the

underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other

records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other

additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our

opinion, the combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal

awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial

statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the

basic f,rnancial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurarice on them.

NIGTITLINGER, COLAVTTA & VOLPA A Professional Association C e r tift ed P ub li c A c c o a ntønts
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Other Reportins Required by Government Auditins Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standørds, we have also issued a report dated November 15, 2017 on
our consideration of the Fairf,reld Township Board of Education's internal control over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over frnancial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Governments Auditing Standards in considering Fairfield Township Board of Education's internal control over
fi nancial reporting and compliance.

Respectfu lly submitted,

GER, COLAVITA & VOLPA, P.A.

Licensed Public School Accountant
No.915

IIIGHTLINGER. COLAVITA & VOLPA A Professional Association Certfi ed P ub lic A ccounl anls
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTzuCT
FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JTINE 3O.2OI7

UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of Fairfield Township Public School District's financial performance
provides an overall review of the School District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2017. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School District's financial performance
as a whole. Readers should also review the notes to the basic financial statements and financial statements
to enhance their understanding of the School District's financial performance.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for 2017 are as follows:

* The assets and deferred outflows of the School District exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows
at the close of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 by 56,972,978.

* Total net position of governmental activities totaled 56,575,487.

A General revenues accounted for $7,566,693 in revenue, or 58.Io/o of all revenues. Program specific
revenues inthe form ofcharges for services, operating grants, contributions and capital grants

accounted for $5,448,291 or 41.9% to total revenues of $13,014,984.

{. Total net position of governmental activities decreasedby 539,321, made up of changes in cash and
cash equivalents, cash deposited with the state as fiscal agent, various receivables and various
liabilities.

{' The School District had512,494,923 in governmental expenses, of which $4,888,909 of these
expenses was offset by program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General
revenues (primarily Federal and State aid) of $7,5 66,693 were inadequate to provide for
governmental activity programs resulting in a negative change in net position of $39,321.

€. The General Fund had $8,029,997 inrevenues, offset by $7,906,041 in expenditures and net
transfers of $328. As a result, ttre General Fund balance increased by $124,284 over 2016. This
increase was anticipated by the Board of Education.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand Fairfield Township School District as a financial
whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at
specific financial activities. The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide information
about the activities of the whole School District, presenting both an aggregate view of the School
District's finances and a longer-term view of those finances.

Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For govemmental funds, these statements tell
how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. In the case of
Fairfield Township School District, the General Fund is by far the most significant fund.
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Reporting the School District as a \ilhole

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the School District to provide programs

and activities, the view of the School district as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the

question, "How did we do financially during 2017?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual

basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. This basis of
accounting takes into account, all ofthe current year's revenues and expenses regardless ofwhen cash is

received or paid.

These two statements report the School District's net position and changes in those assets. This change in
net position is important because it tells the reader that, for the School District as a whole, the financial
positions of the School District has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result
of many factors, some financial, and some not. Non-financial factors include the School District's
property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition, required

educational programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided into two
distinct kinds of activities:

* Governmental Activities - All of the School District's programs and services are reported here

including, but not limited to, instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant
facilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities.

* Business-type Activities - This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to
recover all the expense of the goods or services provided. The Food Service enterprise fund is
reported as a business activity.

Reporting the School District's Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

The analysis of the School District's major (all) fimds begins on page 23. Fund financial reports provide
detailed information about the School District's major funds. The School District uses many funds to

account for a multitude of financial transactions. However, these fund financial statements focus on the

School District's most significant funds. The School District's major govemmental funds are the General

Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Debt Service Fund.

Governmental Funds

The School District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years. These

funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash

and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.
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The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the School District's general

government operations and the basic services it provides. Govemmental fund information helps you
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to
finance educational programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities
(reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is
reconciled in the financial statements.

Enterprise Fund

The enterprise fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore these

statements are essentially the same.

The School District as a \ilhole

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the School District as a whole.

Table 1 provides a comparative summary of the School Dishict's net position for the years ended in20I7
and2016.

Table I

Net Position

20t7 20r6

Assets

Cunent and Other Assets

Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities

Long-term Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt

Restricted

Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

13,416,011 13,509,459

754,853 350,512

r,016,162

12,399,849

766,439

12,743,020

3,9r3,712

3,090,01I

4,295,106

2,451,404

7,003,723 6,746,510

194,163 167,405

8,603,172

137,050

(1,767,244)

8,571,365

86,871

(1,712,180)

6,972,978 $ 6,946,056
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Table 2 shows the changes in net position from fiscal year's 2017 and2016.

Table2
Changes in Net Position

2017 20t6

Revenues

hograms Revenues

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contributions
General Revenues

Propefy Taxes

Grants and Entitlements

Other

Total Revenues

Program Expenses
Instruction
Support Services

Tuition
Pupils and Instructional Staff
General Administration, School

Admini strati on, Business

Operations and Maintenance of Facilities

Pupil Transportation
Employee Beneflrts

Food Service
Other

Debt Service - Interest

Total Expenses

Transfer to Charter School

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

Governmental Activities

13,014,984 12,105,536

44,772

5,403,519

1,297,426
6,096,926

172,341

64,863

4,583,210

1,259,555
6,009,367

188,541

4,327,224

399,745

906,367

611,488
591,156

576,813
4,408,981

493,139

380,691

292,458

3,855,221

623,880

1,023,367

654,055
553,285

462,568
3,454,425

446,639
339,643

298,284

12,988,062 11,7r1,367

$ 26,922 $ 394,169

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the program specific revenues

offsetting those services. The unique nature of property taxes in New Jersey creates the need to routinely
seek voter approval for the School District operations. Program specific revenues of $5,448,291
comprised 41.9% of the $13,014,984 in total revenues and property taxes made up l\Yo federal, state and

local grants accounted for another 46.8% and 1.3%o was for other revenue.

The District's total governmental revenues were $7,566,693 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

Properfy taxes made up 17.l% of governmental revenues, federal state and local grants accounted for
80.6% andZ.3Yo was for other revenue
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Table 3 shows a comparison of the total cost of services and the net cost of services. The net cost shows

the financial burden that was placed on the District's taxpayers by each of these functions.

Tlable 3

Total Co* of Net Co$ of Total Cos of Net Cost of

Services 2017 Services 2017 Services 2016 Services 2016

krstuction
S\¡pport Services

Tuition
Pryils and hstuctional Shff
Gereral Admini$ratiorL School

Adminisûdion, Btsiness

Operdion and i\tfaintenance of Facilities

Prpil Transportation

FmployeeBenefits

Interest and Fisal CIrarges

ûher

Total Bçerses

3,855,227 g 2,750,4344,327,224 S

399,745

906,367

611,488

591,156

576,813

4,448,981

292,458

380,691

3,010,082 $

399,745

383,989

611,488

59r,156

576,813

r,359,592

292,458

380,691

623,880

r,023,367

654,055

553,285

462,568

3,454,425

298,284

339,&3

623,880

298,686

654,055

553,285

462,568

1,158,942

298,284

339,&3

s 12,494,923 S 7,606,014 S ll,2&,728 fi 7,139,777

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the

interaction between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.

Pupils and instructional staffinclude the activities involved with assisting staffwith the content and

process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration and business include expenses associated with
administrative and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities activities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and

equipment in an effective working condition.

Curriculum and staff development includes expenses related to planning, research, development and

evaluation of support services, as well as the reporting of this information internally and to the public.

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as

well as to and from school activities, as provided by state law.

Interest and fiscal charges involve the transactions associated with the payment of interest and other

related charges to debt of the School District.

Extracurricular activities includes expenses related to student activities provided by the School district

which are designated to provide opportunities for students to participate in school events, public events, or

a combination of these for the pulposes of motivation, enjoyment and skill improvement.

Other includes unallocated depreciation and amortization.
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Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District's business-type activities (food service program) were comprised of charges for ',

services and federal and state reimbursements.

* Food servicerevenues exceededexpenses by566,243. 
"* Charges for services represent 544,772 of revenue. This represents amount paid by patrons for 
',

daily food services.

* Federal and state reimbursements for meals, including payments for free and reduced lunches and :

donated commodities were $514,610. t,

i

The School Districtts tr'unds :

i

Information about the School District's major funds starts on page 23. These funds are accounted for i

using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds (i.e., general fund, special

revenue fund, capital projects and debt service fund presented in the fund-based statements) had total
revenues of $10,771,202 and expenditures of $10,734,480. The net change in fund balance for the year

was an increase oî$36,722, which includes funding $90,000 in debt service costs.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report,

the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedules

present a sunmary of the revenues of the governmental funds (excluding capital projects) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2017, and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior
yeaf revenues.

Increase Percent
Percent @ecrease) Increase

Revenue Amount of Total from 2016 _ (Decrease)

Local Sources S 1,469,767 13.6% $ 22,326 l.7\o
State Sources 8,525,655 79.2% 13,364 0.2%

Federal Sources 775,780 7.2% 193,333 31.0%

s 10,771,202 100.0% $ 229,023 2.3%Total

The increase in Local Sources is attributed to increases in the tax levy of $37,871, tuition of 841,323 and

interest earned of $444, offset by a decrease of $57,312 tnofher miscellaneous revenues.

The increase in State Sources is attributed to increases in of $ 10 6.465 in various State Public Aid
categories, less $93,101 in Special Projects grants.

The increase in Federal Sources is attributed to increases in various federal grant awards of $193,333.
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The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Debt Service
Fund Expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30,2017

Expenditures
Percent

Amount of Total

Increase
(Decrease)

2016

Percent
Increase

(Decrease)

12.2%
-0.1%

-58.0%

2.8%
-5.4%

t.8%

Current:
Instruction
Undistri bute d Expenditures

Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principal
Interest

Total r0.734.480 100% $ r90,375

4,327,224
5,690,783

203,223

370,000
143,250

40.4% S

s3.0%
r.9%

3.4%
r.3%

472,003
(3,2rr)

(280,26t)

10,000
(8,1 56)

The increase in current - instruction is attributed to increases in special instruction of $108,380 and

regular instruction of $383,105, offset by decreases in other special instruction of $10,638, and other
instruction of $8,844.

The decrease in current - undistributed expenditures is attributed to decreased tuition of $224,135, student

and instruction services of $l17,000, administrative expenses of $63,578, security of 52,920, offset by
decreases in plant maintenance of $40,791, pupil transportation of $114,245, employee benefits of
$228,375 and central services of $21,011.

The decrease in capital outlay is attributed to decreases in capital project spending and equipment costs.

Debt Service decreased due to payment of scheduled interest and principal on existing bonds.

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The School District's Budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of modifred accrual and encumbrance accounting. The most significant
budgeted fund is the General Fund.

During the course of the fiscal year 2017,the School District amended its General Fund budget as needed.

The School District uses program based budgeting and the budgeting systems are designed to tightly
control total program budgets but provide flexibility for program management in the following areas:

{. Staffrng changes based on student needs.

* Additional costs for student transportation both in regular education and special education.
t'. Accounting changes in maintenance and operations.
..r. Changes in appropriations to prevent budget overruns.
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While the District's final budget for the general fund anticipated that revenues and expenditures would
equal with the appropriation of $ I T4,208 in fund balance, the actual results for the year show an increase

in fund balance of $143,900.

* Actual revenues were $53,043 more than expected, which excludes TPAF pension and social
security of 5926,326.

å The actual expenditures were S99,569less than expected, which excludes the on-behalf state aid
payments for TPAF pension and social security of 5926,326.

Capital Assets

At the end of the fiscal year 2017, the School District had $12,399,849 invested general in land, buildings,
fumiture and equipment, and vehicles and food service equipment. Table 4 shows fiscal2}l7 balances

compared to 2016.

Table 4

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30

2017 2016

Land
Sites

s 179,994 $ 179,994
298,264 314,559

Buildingandlmprovements 1I,683,775 11,995,491

Machinery and Equipment 237,816 252,976

Totals s 12,399,849 s t2,743,020

Overall capital assets decreased 5343,17I from fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2017. Acquisitions of
capital assets were $45,537 in general equipment, offset by depreciation expenses for the year of
$388,708, as calculated and a report prepared by an outside contractor.

Debt Administration

At June 30,2017, the School District had $3,913 ,712 as outstanding debt. Of this amount $158,712 is for
compensated absences and $3,755,000 for bonds for school construction.

On September 30, 2003, the voters of Fairfield Township approved the construction of a new school in
the arnount of $16,158,947 of which $10,677,079 (68.56%) was funded by the State ofNew Jersey,

$500,868 was funded by Capital Reserve of the School District and $4,981,000 was funded by the
issuance of Serial Bonds.

On December 8, 2009, the voters approved a referendum to construct an addition as well as undertake
various improvements and renovations to the Fairfield Township Elementary School. Also included was
the acquisition of the necessary equipment and any associated site work. The total cost of the project is
$3,984,772, of which 51,984,772 will be funded by a grant from the State of New Jersey and $2,000,000
was funded by the issuance of Serial Bonds on March 25,2010. The initial interest payment of
531,397 .7 I was paid on Septemb er I , 2010 and the initial principal pa;'rnent of $70,000 was paid on
March l.20ll.
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On September 15, 2016, the District refunded $3,150,000 in Bonds payable from the March 15,2004
Construction of the new Elementary/Middle School, resulting in a net savings of $56,000.

At June 30, 2017 , the School District's overall legal debt margin was $8,71 I ,87 4 and the unvoted debt

margin was $4,963,874 or 57Yo.

The purpose of serial bond debt of the district is as follows:
Amount

Outstanding
June 30,2017

Construction of a new elementary/middle

School including necessary onsite and offsite
improvements, furniture and equipment
associated with such improvements (Refunded)

Construction of an addition as well as

undertake various imnprovements and renovations

to the Fairfield Township Elementary School

and to acquire the necessary equipment and

undertake any associated site work

For the Future

9ltslt4 3,150,000 $ 2,290,000

3lvt0 $ 2,000,000 $ 1.465.000

Fairfield Township School District has planned and will be implementing a number of initiatives
reflective of our continued development and implementation of best practice instructional strategies and

instructional delivery to students during the2016-2017 thatwill flow through to the 2017-2018 school
year. While funding is always a concern to all school districts it has an especially significant impact to
districts such as Fairfield. ln our rural setting with limited ratables and a significant percentage of
economically disadvantaged families our students face complicated situations that may impact negatively
on their learning. It is our hope that the State will continue to fund programs at or above the level they

currently have funded. V/e as a district will continue our efforts in being proactive to secure necessary

funding. V/e also will be expanding our efforts and program parameters to reach out to parents/guardians

and the community to promote increased family and community involvement. Further we are committed
to assist our families as needed in completing forms that can provide them with the resources they need as

part of our school district family.

For the future, our goal is to continue to create an environment that is conducive to student leaming. We
will continue to provide professional development to empower staff in implementing best practice based

instruction and student assessment. We will continue to promote student success through targeted
instruction. We will implement a professional staff evaluation instrument (Charlotte Danielson's,
Framework for Teaching model) that is among those evaluation instruments sanctioned by the State of
New Jersey. Increased proficiency in the areas of ELA and mathematics continues to be a paramount
goal. Further, we continue to refine, revise and implement a student behavior system the increases

positive behavior recognition. We will also continue our efforts in working to create an environment
where parents/guardians feel comfortable in working with the administration and staff to promote student

success.

Date of Amount of
Issue Issue
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Our summer school program for students provides instruction in mathematics and ELA core standards

and also provides both a breakfast and lunch program to those attending. This program also includes a

culminating field trip activity. Another planned initiative is an after school tutorial program with
transportation provided. During the school year from early December to May we have developed an after

school tutorial program with student transportation that once again targets instructional areas of math and

language.

In working toward these goals, we continue to rely on local, state and federal funding. Funding is our
most pressing need to enable us to reach these goals. Fairfield Township School District's "Mission" is to

continue efforts in "Pursuing Educational Excellence. Our community and Board of Education remain

committed to providing the best educational opportunities for all of our students.

Contacting the School District's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general

overview of the School District's finances and to show the School District's accountability for the money

it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact Janecia Smith,

School Business Administrator at Fairfield Township Board of Education,375 Gouldtown Woodruff
Road, Bridgeton, NJ 08302.



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



DISTRICT WIDE FINAIICIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the
District.
These statements include the financial activities of the overall District, except for fiduciary
activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimizethe double-counting of internal activities. These
statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.
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F'AIRF'IELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTR.ICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30.2017

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

EXHIBIT A-1

Total
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Due from Other Funds

Receivables, Net
Inventory
Restricted Assets:

Capital Assets, Net (Note 5):

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Defened Pension Outflows

LIÄBILITIES

Accounts Payable

Net Pension Liability
Accrued Interest on Bonds
Unearned Revenue

Short-term Payable

Non-current Liabilities (Note 6):
Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOIIRCES:
Deferred Pension Inflows
Defeasance of Debt

Total Deferred Inflows

NET POSITION

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted:

Excess Surplus
Capital Reserve

Maintenance Reserve

Special Revenue (Deficit)
Capital Projects
Debt Service

Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

12.949.669 466,342 13,416,011

754,853 754,853

226,237

116,405

282,293

12,324,734

355,420 $

26,766

9,041

75,115

591,657

116,405

309,059

9,041

12,399,849

211,202
2,557,502

40,740
33,135

178,581

390,000
3,523,712

62,559

6,2g3

273,760
2,557,502

40,740
39,429

178,581

390,000

3,523,712

6,934,972 68,851 7,003,723

152,486
41,677

152,496
41,677

194,163 194,163

8,529,057

137,741
30,346

10,000

(143,806)

86,296
76,473

(2,089,620)

75,115

322,376

8,603,172

137,741

30,346
10,000

(143,806)

86,296
16,473

(1,767,244)

6,575,487 g 397,491 $ 6,972,978

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRTCT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVÍTIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2017

Program Revenues
Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

EXHIBIT A-2

Charges Operating
for Grants and

Services Contributions
Governmental

Activities

Business-
fype

Activities TotalFunctionslPrograms

Govemmental Activities:
Instruction:
Regular $
Special Education
Other Special Instruction
Other lnsfuction

Support Services:

Tuition
Student & I¡struction Related Services

General and Business Adminishative Services
School Administrative Services

Cenüal Services

Information Technology
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Security
Pupil Transportation
Employee Benefits
Interest on Debt Service

Unallocated Depreciation

Expenses

3,478,821
776,959

8,333

63,1 I I

399,745
906,367
246,523

99,028
l9l,48t
74,456

578,376
12,780

576,813
4,408,981

292,458
380,691

(1,3t7,t42) S (2,161,679)

(776,9s9)
(8,333)

(63,r l l)

(s22,378)

(3,049,389)

(399,74s)
(383,989)

(246,s23)
(ee,028)

(191,481)
(74,4s6)

(s78,376)
(t2,780)

(576,8 l3)
(r,3s9,s92)

Q92,4s8)
(380,6e1)

(2,t61,679)
(776,959)

(8,333)
(63, I I l)

(399,74s)
(383,989)
(246,s23)
(ee,028)

(19r,481)
(74,4s6)

(578,376)
(12,780)

(s76,8 l3)
(1,3s9,s92)

(292,4s8)
(380,691)

Total Govemmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Food Service

Total Business-type Activities

Total Primary Goverrunent

General Revenues:

Taxes:

12,494,923 (4,888,909) (7,606,014) (7,606,014)

493,t39 (44,772) (s14,610) 66,243 66,243

493,139 (44,772) (s14,610) 66,243 66,243

s- t'¿I{62 s 

-!4J2$_ 6Æ12$_f606'0t2 s _:6243_$ __!,*2

Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes, Net
Taxes Levied for Debt Service

Federal and State Aid not Reshicted
Invesûnent Earninç
Miscellaneous Income

Total General Revenues, Special ltems, Extaordinary Items and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position-Beginning

Net Positior.-Ending s 6,575,487 S 397,491 $ 6,972,978

$ 874,176 $
423,250

6,096,926
2,504

169,837

874,176
423,250

6,096,926

2,s04
t69,837

7,566,693 7,s66,693

(39,321) 66,243

6,614,808 331,248

26,922

6,946,0s6

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statemeng



FUND FINAI\CTAL STATEMENTS

The Individual Fund statements and schedules present more detailed information for the
individual fund in a formatthat segregates information by fund.



GOVERNMENTAL F'UNDS
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FTJNDS
JUNE 30.2017

146,403

396,362

72,848

26.903

Special

Revenue

Fund

$

EXHIBIT B-I

Debt Total
Service Governmental
Fund Funds

General
Fund

Capital
Projects

Fund

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Interftnds Receivable
District Tax Receivable
St¿te Aid Receivable
Federal Aid Receivable

Total Asses

LIABILITIES AND FI]ND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable

Interfund Payable

lnan Payable

Miscellaneous Accounts Pavable

Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Restricted For:

Maintenance Reserve

Capital Reserve

Excess Surplus

Special Revenue Fund
Capital Projects Fund

Assigned - Desþated for
Subsequent Yeat's Expenditures
Excess Surplus Designated for

Subsequent Yeat's Expenditures
Debt Service

Unassigned, Reported In:
General Fund @eficit)

Total Fund Balances @eficit)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

77,586

t82,542

$ ó42,516 S 182,s42 $ 164,424 S 77,s86 $ 1,067,068

-: 

:

s t64,424 S 310,827

473,948
't2,848

26,903

182,542

119,670 $ 74,911 $
84,590 2t8,302

178,581

16,621

33, I35

$

78,128 6t,t l3

399,462 326,348 78,128 6r,l t3 865,051

194,58 I
442,133

178,58r

16,621

33,135

10,000

30,346

137,74t

30,130

334,638

(299;801)

243,054

(143,806)

10,000

30,346

t37,741
(143,806)

86,296

30,130

334,638

t6,473

(299,801)

86,296

16,473

(143,806) 86,296 16,473 202,0t7

s 642,st6 S 182,542 S t64,424::- $ 77,s86

Amounb reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Net Assets (A-l) are different because:

Capital asses used in govemmental activities a¡e not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost
of the assets is $ I 7, 164, 108 and the accumulated depreciation
is $4,E39,374 (Note 5).

Accrued Interest is not due and payable in the current period and arq therefore,
not reported as liabilities.

Deferred Inflows on Debt Defeasance are not reported as a Liability or Fund Balance
in the Governmental funds.

Long Term Net Pension Liability - PERS
Defened hflow - PERS
Defened Outflow- PERS

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the cunent period and therefore a¡e not reported as

liabilities in the ñnds (see Note 6).

Net position of Govemmental Activities

12,324,734

(40,740)

(4t,677)

(2,557,s02)

754,853
(tsz,486)

(3,913,7t2)

$ 6J7s,487

The accompanying Notes to Fin¿ncial statemetrts are an integral part of this statement
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTÁ.L FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2OI7

General

Fund

Special

Revenue

Fund

Capital
Projects

Fund

EXHTBIT B-2

Total
Governmental

Funds

Debt
Service

Fund

REVENUES
Local sources:

Local Tax Levy
Tuition from Other LEA'S

Interest Eamed

Miscellaneous

Total - Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cunent:

Instruction:

Regular Instruction
Special Education Instruction

Other Special Instruction
Other Instruction

Support Services:

Tuition
Student & Instruction Related Services

General Administrative Services

School Administrative Services

Central Services

Admin. Information Technolory
Plant Operations and Maintenance

Security

Pupil Transportation

Employee Benefits

Capital Outlay
Debt Service - Principal
Debt Service - Interest

Toúal Expenditures

Excess @eficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures

OTHER FrNÁNCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Transfers lnterest from Capital Projects Fund

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance-July 1 (Deficit)

Fund Balance--June 30 (Deficit)

8,029,997 2,317,627 328 423,250 10,771,202

874,176

96,992
2,176

72,845

328

423,2s0 S 1,297,426

96,992

2,504
72,845

1,046,189

6,981,982

1,826

1,543,673

773,954

328 423,250 1,469,767

8,525,655

775,780

2,161,679

776,9s9
8,333

63,1 I I

399,74s
383,989

246,523

99,028
l9l,48l
74,456

578,376

12,780

576,8t3
2,165,504

t67,264

1,317,142

522,378

439,710

35,959

3,478,821

7?6,959

8,333

63,ttt

399,74s

906,367

246,523

99,028

l9l,48 r

74,456

578,376

r2,780
576,813

2,605,214

203,223

370,000

t43,250
370,000

143,250

7,906,041 2,315,189 513,250 10,734,480

123,956 2,438 (90,000) 36,722328

(328)

328 (328)

t24,284
1t8,770

2,438
(r46,244)

(e0,0oo)

106,473

36,722

165,29586,296

$ 243,054 $ (143,806) $ 86,296 $ 16,473 S

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

202,017
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EXHIBITB-3

FATRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF TIIE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDTTURES.

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR TTTE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2017

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (from B-2) S 36,722

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the Statement

of Activities (A-2) arc different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period.
Depreciation expense

Capital outlays
$ (380,691)

45,537

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the govemmental funds, but the repayment reduc€s

long-term liabilities in the Statement ofNet Assets and is not reported in the Statement of Activities.

In the Statement ofActivities, the gain or loss on the reflrnancing ofdebt is reflected as a
an adjusfment to interest cos! whereas there is no reported revenue or loss in the Govemmental Funds.

In the Statement ofActivities, certain operafing expenditures such as compensated absences

are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however,
expenditures for these items are reported in the amount offinancial resources used (paid).

(335,154)

370,000

4,978

11,394

Pension confibutions are reported in govemmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities,
the conhíbutions are adjusted for actua¡ial valuation adjustnents, including service and interest costs, administrative
costs, ¡nvestment returns, and experience/assumption. This is the amount by which net pension liability and defened
inflows/outflows relatedto pension changed duringthe period. (130,761)

In the Statement ofActivities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardless of when due.

lnthe Govemmental funds, interest is reported when due. 3,500

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (A-2) $ (3e,32r)

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30.2017

EXHIBIT B-4

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Food

ServÍce Totals

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable:

Federal

State

Other

Interfr¡nd Accounts R eceivable

Inventories

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets:

Equipment

Accumulated Depreciation

Total Fixed Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Curent Liabilities:
Accounts Payable

Uneamed Revenue

Total Curent Liabilities

NET POSITION

Invested in Capiøl Assets,

Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted

TotalNet Position

270,830 $

24,152

268

2,346

84,590

9,041

270,830

24,152
?68

2,346

84,590

9,041

391,227 391,227

275,948

(200,833)

275,948

(200,833)

75,115 75,r15

466,342 466,342

62,558

6,293

62,558

6,293

68,851 68,851

75,115

322,376

75,1 15

322,376

397,491 $ 397,491

The accornpanying Notes to Financial Statements âre an infegral part of this statement.
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2017

EXHIBIT 8.5

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Food
Service

Total
Enterprise

25,483
lg,2gg

Operating Revenues:

Charges for Services:

Daily Sales - Reimbursable Programs:

School Breakfast Program
School Lunch Program

Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs:
Special Functions

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:

Cost of Sales - Reimbursable

Cost of Sales - Non-Reimbursable
Salaries

Employee Benefits
Management Fees

Miscellaneous
General Supplies

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-operating Revenues @xpenses):
State Sources:

State School Lunch Program
Federal Sources:

National School Breakfast Program
National School Lunch Program
National School Snack Program
Summer Program
Food Distribution Program

Interest Eamed

Total Non Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Contributions & Transfers

Change in Net Position

Total Net Position-Beginning

Total Net Position-Ending

25,483
19,289

44,772 44,772

230,493
2r,543

142,600

22,101
28,280
16,330

23,775

8,017

230,493

21,543

142,600

22,101
28,280
16,330

23,775

8,017

493,r39 493,139

(448,367) (448,367)

5,084

169,520

286,256
2,775

10,829

39,644
s02

5,084

169,520

286,256
2,775

l0,g2g
39,644

502

514,610 514,610

66,243 66,243

66,243

331,248

66,243

331,248

397,491 $

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

397,491
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F.I,IRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FTJNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JIJNE 30.2OI7

EXHIBIT B-6

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Food

Service

44,772
(142,600)

Q2,t0t)
(228,050)

Total
Enterprise

44,772

(142,600)

(22,t0r)
(228,0s0)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers

Pa],ments to Employees

Payments for Employee Benefits
Payments to Suppliers

Net Cash Provided by (used for) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NO¡{CAPITAL FINANCING ACTWITIES
State Sources

Federal Sources

Board Subsidy and Interest

Net Cash Provided by (used for) Non-capital Financing Activities

CASH FLO\ryS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTTVITIES

Purchæe of Fixed Assets

Net Cash Provided by (used for) Capital and Retated Financing Activities

CASII FLOWS FROM IIWESTING ACTTVTTIES

Net Cash Provided by (used for) Investing Activities

Net Inorease (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances-Beginning of Year

Balances-End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating lncome (Loss) to Net Cash provided
(used) by Operating Activities:
Operaf ing lncome (,oss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash provided by:

(used for) Operating Activities
Depreciation and Net Amortization
(ncrease)Decrease in Accounts Receivable, Net
(Increase)Decrease in Interfund Accounts Receivable. Net
(Increase)Decrease in Inventories
Increase(Decreæe) in Accounts Payable
Increæe(Decrease) in Uneamed Revenue

Total Adjustments

Net Cæh Provided by (used for) Operating Activities

Noncash Noncapital Financing Activities:
During the year, the District accepted $40,178 of Food Commodities from the U. S.

Q47,979) (347,979)

5,084

509,024

502

5,084

509,024
502

5 14,610 5 t4,6t0

l 66,63 l
t04,199

l 66,63 l
104,199

270,830 $ 270,830

(448,367) $

8,017

(306)

29,576
281

6t,4tI
1,409

(448,367)

8,017

(306)

29,576
28t

6t,4tt
1,409

100,388 100,388

(347,979) $

Deparûnent of Agiculture

The accompanying Notes to Financial statements are an integral part ofthis statement

Q47,979)
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable

Payroll Deductions and V/ithholdings
Flexible Spending Reserve
Due to General Fund
Payable to Student Groups

Tot¿I Liabilities

NET POSITION

Total Liabilities andNet Position

-29-

FAIRF'IELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF F'IDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30.2017

EXHIBIT B-7

Agency
Student
Activify Payroll

9,933 $ 194,955

9,933 $ 184,955

3,103 $

57,933

10,617

116,405

6,830

9,933 184,955

9,933 $ 184,955

$

$

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2017

NOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY

Fairfield Township School District is organized as a Type II District under the Constitution of the State of
New Jersey. The District operates under a locally elected Board form of government consisting of nine
members elected to three-year terms, which are staggered. The District provides educational services as

authorized by state and federal guidelines.

The District serves arr area of forty-two square miles. It is located in Cumberland County and provides
education for all of Fairf,reld Township's grades K through 8. The District currently opérates two instructional
buildings with the administrative offices in the primary school building. The Fairfield Township School
District had an approximate enrollment at June 30,2017 of 627 students.

Reportine Entity:

As a Type II district, the School District functions independently through a Board of Education. The board is
comprised of nine members elected to three-year terms. The purpose of the district is to educate students in
grades K-8.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100
of the GASB Codification of Govemmental Accountins and Financial Reporting Standards, is whether:

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOI]NTING POLICIES

New Accountine Standards:

The district adopted the following GASB statements:

objective of this Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about postemployment benefits
other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose external
financial reports of state and local govemmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing

accountability. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the efFectiveness of existing
standards of accounting and financial reporting for all postemployment benefits þensions and OPEB)
with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and
interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. The requirements of this Statement will be

effectiveforreportingperiodsbeginning.afterJune 15,2016. Theadoptionof GASBT4,didnotimpact
the financial statements of the School District.
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Fairfield Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF'SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

New Accountins Standards (Continued):

The district adopted the following GASB statements:

accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by providing recognition and
measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the agreement. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016.
Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of GASB 81 on the School District's
financial statements. The adoption of GASB 81, did not impact the f,rnancial statements of the School
District.

Statement is to address certain issues that have been raised with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial
Reportingfor Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Finøncial Reportingfor Pensions, and No. 73,
Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Pensìons and Related Assets Thst Are Not within the Scope of
GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68.

Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-related measures
in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the treatment of deviations
from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting puq)oses, and (3) the
classification of payments made by employers to satisff employee þlan member) contribution
requirements. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 20t6. The adoption of GASB 82, will impact the financial statements of the School District.

Other accounting standards that the District is currently reviewing for applicability and potential impact on
the financial statements include:

Pensions: The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by
state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment
benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers
about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a
comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting
for all postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful
information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional
transparency. The requirements of this Statement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2017. Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of GASB 75 on the
School District's financial statements. Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of
GASB 75 onthe School District's financial statements.



32

Fairfield Torvnship School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

New Accounting Standards (Continued):

GASB No. 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligation^s: This Statement addresses accounting and
financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable
liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A government that has legal
obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets should
recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement. The requirements of Statement will be
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Management is evaluating the potential
impact of the adoption of GASB 83 on the School District's financial statements.

GASB No. 84 - Fiduciøry Activities: The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding
the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those
activities should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identiffing fiduciary activities of all
state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a govemment is
controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary
relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identifu fiduciary component units and
postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The requirements of Statement will
be effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Management is evaluating the
potential impact of the adoption of GASB 84 on the School District's financial statements.

GASB No. 85 - Omníbus 2017: The objective of this Statement is to address practice issues that have
been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement
addresses a vafiety of topics including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value
measurement and application, and postemployment benefits þensions and other postemployment
benefits [OPEB]). The requirements of Statement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2017. Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of GASB 85 on the
School District's flrnancial statements.

GASB No. 86 - Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues; The primary objective of this Statement is to
improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by
providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing
resources-resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt-are placed in an irrevocable trust for
the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting
for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is
defeased in substance. The requirements of Statement will be effective for reporting periods beginning
after June 15,2017. Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of GASB 86 on the
School District's financial statements.
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Fairfield Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF'SIGNIFICANT ACCOT]NTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

New Accounting Standards (Continued):

financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments.
This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring recognition of
certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and
recogntzed as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the
contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that
leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize
a lease receivable and a deferred inflow ofresources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency
of information about governments' leasing activities. The requirements of Statement will be effective
for reporting periods beginning after periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Management is
evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of GASB 87 on the School District's financial
statements.

A. Basis of Presentation:

The District's basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements, including a statement of net
position and a statement of activities, and fund f,rnancial statements, which provide a more detailed level of
financial information.

District-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statements of activities display information
about the financial activities of the overall district, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been
made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the
governmental and busíness-type activities of the District. Govemmental activities generally are financed
through taxes, intergovemmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are

financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type activities
of the District at the fiscal year end while the statement of activities presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each different business-type activity of the District and for each function
of the District's govemmental activities.

clearly identiflrable to a particular function. Indirect expenses-expenses of the District related to the
administration and support of the District's programs, such as personnel and accounting-are not
allocated to programs.

programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including
all taxes and state formula aid, are presented as general revenues.
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Fairfïeld Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A. Basis of Presentation (Continued):

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the School District segregates transactions related to
certain School District functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to
demonstrate legal compliance. The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds,
including its f,rduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental, proprtetary, and

fiduciary - are presented. The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New
Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the option noted in GASB
No. 34, paragraphT6. The NJDOE believes that the presentation of all frurds as major is important for public
interest and to promote consistency among district financial reporting.

B. Fund Accounting:

The accounts of the District are maintained in accordance with the principles of fi.md accounting to ensure

observance of limitations and restrictions on the resources available. The principles of fund accounting
require that resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds in accordance with
activities or objectives specified for the resources. Each fund is a separate accounting entity with a selÊ
balancing set of accounts. Funds are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.
Each category, in turn, is divided into separate'ofund Q/pes".

GOVERNMENTAL FT]NI)

General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to account for
all expendable financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included
are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional equipment which are

classiflred in the Capital Outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes budgeted Capital
Outlay in this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles as they pertain to governmental entities
state that General Fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived
improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid,
district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or
additions to capital assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of
buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These
resources can be transferred from and to Current Expense by board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund: The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue from State and Federal Govemment, (other than major capital projects, Debt Service or the
Enterprise Funds) and local appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes.
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Fairfïeld Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30,2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF'SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Fund Accountins (Continued):

Capital Proiects Fund: The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial resources to be

used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by
Proprietary Funds). The financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are

specifically authorized by the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election
or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund: The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and
the payment of, principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition,
construction, and improvement programs.

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is on determination of net income, financial position and
cash flows. The applicable generally accepted accounting principles are similar to businesses in the
private sector. The following is a description of the Proprietary Funds of the District:

Enterprise fFood Servicel Fund: The Enterprise Funds are utilized to account for operations that are

financed and operated in a maflrer similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the
District is that the costs (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or
services to the students on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges;

or, where the District has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred,
andlor net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability or other purposes.

The District's Enterprise Fund is comprised of the Food Service Fund.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" measurement
focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities, whether current or non-current, associated with their
activity are included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated

into contributed capital and unreserved retained earnings, if applicable. Proprietary fund type operating
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged ÍN an expense against
their operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietary fund balance sheets. Depreciation
has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straightJine method. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Food Service Fund Equipment 7 -20 Years
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Fairfield Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30,2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Fund Accounting (Continued):

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

Trust and Agency Funds - The trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the
District on behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within
the District.

Expendable Trust Fund - An Expendable Trust Fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner
as the governmental fund types, using the same measurement focus and basis of accounting.
Expendable Trust Funds account for assets where both the principal and interest may be spent.

Expendable Trust Funds include Unemployment Compensation Insurance and a scholarship fund.

Nonexpendable Trust Fund - A nonexpendable trust fund is used to account for assets held under the
terms of a formal trust asreement. wherebv the District is under oblieation to maintain the trust
principal.

Asency tr'unds ('PayroII and Student Activities Fund) - Agency funds are used to account for the
assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature

and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

C. Basis of Accountinq and Measurement tr'ocus:

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the
financial statements.

District-wide, Proprietary and Fíduciary Fund Financíal Statements: The District-wide financial statements

are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of
accounting; the enterprise fund and fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the
accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred
revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are

susceptible to accrual as under the New Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to remit to its school
district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year.

The District records the entire approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the
revenue is both measurable and available.

The District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is
considered to be an "accounts receivable". Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in
the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF'SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Basis of Accountinq and Measurement Focus (Continued):

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the cunent financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are

recognized when measurable and available. "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be

determined and "available" means collectible within the curent period or soon enough thereafter to be used to

pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,

except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences,

which are recognized as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and

acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

In its accounting and financial repofing, the District follows the pronouncements of the Governmental

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) and its predecessor organizations issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements. The District's proprietary funds have elected not to apply the standards

issued by FASB after November 30, 1989. The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial
results of proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds. Under this method, revenues are recorded in
the accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

D. BudsetsÆudgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring ofeach year for the general, special revenue, and debt

service funds, which are submitted to the county office. In accordance with P.L.2011,c.202, the School

District passed a resolution to move the school board election to the first Tuesday after the first Monday in
November, starting in November of 2012 and to be held simultaneously with the general election. As a result,

a vote is not required on the School District's general fund tax levy for the budget year, other than the general

fund tax levy required to support a proposal for additional funds, if any. Budgets are prepared using the

modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the special revenue fund as described later. The legal level of
budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are def,rned as the

lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in
N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-16.2 (Ð l. Transfers of appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any time
during the fiscal year in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-13.3. The Board of Education did not make any

material supplemental budgetary appropriations during the fiscal year.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during
the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of
accounting and generally accepted accounting principles wittr the exception of the special revenue fund as

noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in
the govemmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis.

The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis

recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis

does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis

financial reports.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. BudsetsÆudsetary Control (Continued):

The budget, as detailed on Exhibit C-l andC-2, include all amendments to the adopted budget, if any.

Exhibit C-3 presents a reconciliation of the general fund and special revenue fund revenues and expenditures

from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in the General fund Budgetary Comparison schedule and

the Special Revenue Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule to the GAAP basis of accounting as presented in
the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds.

Note that the School District does not report encumbrances outstanding at year end as expenditures in the
general fund since the general fund budget follows the modified accrual basis, with the exception of the

recognition policy for the last state aid payment.

E. Encumbrance Accounting:

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in
governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as reservations of fund balances at fiscal
year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed

contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received advances are reflected in
the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at the

beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the

outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.

F. Tuition Receivable:

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are subject

to adjustment when the final costs have been determined.

G. Tuition Payable:

Tuition charges for the fiscal yearc 2014-15,2015-16 and 2016-17 were based on rates established by the

receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.

H. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses:

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise

fund are recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF'SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLTCIES (CONTINUED)

H. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses (Continued):

On district-wide financial statements and in the enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which
approximates market, using the f,rrst-in-first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the Enterprise Fund
represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2017.

I. Short-Term Interfund ReceivablesÆayables:

Short-term interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or
services rendered tolfrom a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.

J. Assets. Liabilities and Equity:

Interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or services
rendered tolfrom a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.

lnventories

On district-wide financial statements and in the enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which
approximates market, using the first-in-first-out (FIFO) method and is expended when used. Prepaid
expenses in the Enterprise Fund represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods
beyond June 30, 2017.lncluded below is Commodity Food Inventory of $4,901.

lnventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30,2017 consisted of the following:

Food
Supplies

$ 7,841
1.200

$ g-a4l

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required by the Single Audit Law of
1986, as revised) is the difference between market value and cost of the commodities at the date of pwchase
and has been included as an item of nonoperating revenue in the financial statemenfs.

Capital Assets - General fixed assets acquired or constructed during the year are recorded at actual cost.
Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. The general fixed
assets acquired or constructed prior to June 30,2017 are valued at cost based on historical records or through
estimation procedures performed by an independent appraisal oompany. General fixed assets are reflected as

expenditures in the applicable governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the Statement of Net
Assets. Expenditures that enhance the asset or significantly extend the useful life of the asset are considered
improvements and are added to the fixed asset's cu:rently capitalized cost. The cost of normal repairs and
maintenance are not capitalized
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIF'ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINTIED)

J. Assets. Liabilities and Equitv (Continued):

Capital assets are depreciated in the district-wide f,rnancial statements using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Asset Class
E stim ated

U seful Lives

Site Improvement
School Building
Building Improvements
Equipment

20
30-50

20
5-10

K. Compensated Absences:

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District's personnel
policies and negotiated contracts. In the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated
vacation. Sick leave benefits are cumulative and payable upon retirement according to contract terms.

The liability for vested compensated absences of govemmental fund types is recorded in the general long-term
debt account group. The current portion of the compensated absences balance is not considered material to
the applicable funds total liabilities, and is therefore not shown separately from the long-term liability balance
of compensated absences.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund type is recorded within those funds as

the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2017 no liability existed for compensated absences in the
proprietary fund types.

L. Unearned Revenue:

Unearned revenue in the Special Revenue Fund represents cash, which has been received but not yet eamed.

M. Operating Revenues and Expenses:

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the enterprise
fund. For the School District, these revenues are sales for food service. Operating expenses are necessary
costs incurred to provide the service that is the primary activity of the enterprise fund.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF'SIGNIFICANT ACCOTINTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

N. Allocation of Indirect Expenses:

The District reports direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses are allocated to functions but are not reported
separately in the Statement of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer's share of social
security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated based on salaries of that
program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is specifically identified by function and is included in the
expense column of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed to a specific
function is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities. Interest
on long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities.

O. Accrued Liabilities and Lons-term Oblisations:

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the District-wide financial
statements. Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a govemmental fund when due, or when resources
have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For other long-term
obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is
reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in
the Statement of Net Assets.

P. f,'und Equity:

Contributed capital represents the amount of fund capital contributed to the proprietary funds from other
funds. Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not available for appropriation for expenditure or
legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent plans for future use of
financial resources.

Q. Comparative DatalReclassifÏcations :

Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in order to provide an understanding of changes
on the District's financial position and operations. However, comparative data has not been presented in each
of the statements since their inclusion would make the statements unduly complex and diffrcult to read.

R. Management Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that afFect certain reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, acfial results could differ from those
estimates.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

S. Extraordinary and Special ltems:

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence. Special
items are transactions or events that are within the control of management and are either unusual in nature or
infrequent in occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the year.

T. Net Position:

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net position invested in capital assets,
net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position
are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the School District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or
laws or regulations of other governments. The School District's policy is to first apply restricted resources
when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

U. Fund Balance Reserves:

The School District reserves those portions of fund balance which are legally segregated for a specific future
use or which do not represent available expendable resources and, therefore, are not available for
appropriation or expenditure. Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion which is available for
appropriation in future periods. A fund balance reserve has been established for encumbrances.

V. Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchanqe Transactions:

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value,
is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is
recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available means the
resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter
to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to
be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, available means within sixty days of the
fiscal year end. Non-exchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly
giving equal value in return, include property taxes, income taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On the
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from income taxes is recognized in the period in which the income is eamed.

Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which alt eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which speciff the
year when the resources are required to be used or for the fiscal year when use is frst permitted; matching
requirements, in which the School District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose;
and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the School District on a reimbursement
basis.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF'SIGNIFICANT ACCOTJNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEDI

V. Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions (Continued):

On the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can
be recognized. Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered both
measurable and available at fiscal year end: property taxes available as an advance, interest, and tuition.

W. Lease Acquisition Costs:

As part of any long-term lease agreement, providing for the use of school buildings, payments constituting
professional lease acquisition and other related professional fees will expensed when incurred in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 65. There \¡r'ere no such leases for the year ended June 30, 2017.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change fi.mds, cash in banks and all highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued interest.
U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when
purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they
may invest in. New Jersey statute l8A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be purchased
by New Jersey school districts.

Investments are stated at cost, or amortized cost, which approximates market. The amortized cost method
involves valuing a security at its cost on the date of purchase and thereafter assuming a constant amortization
to maturity for any discount or premium. The Board classifies certificates of deposit, which have original
maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from the date of purchase, as

investments.

Deposits:

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in New
Jersey, which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings and Loan
lnsurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the United States that insures deposits made in public
depositories. School districts are also permiued to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash
Management Fund. New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of
public funds that exceed depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5Yo of the average daily balance of collected
public funds on deposit.

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75Yo of the capital funds
of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to l00Yo of the
amount exceeding 7 5o/o.
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NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS AND IÌ\I\{ESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve Bank of
Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking institution that is a member of the
Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.

Investments:

New Jersey statutes permit the Board to purchase the following types of securities:

a.) Bonds or other obligations of or guaranteed by the United States.

b.) Bonds of any Federal lntermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National
Mortgage Agency or of any United States Bank for Cooperatives, which have a maturity date
not greater than twelve months from the date of purchase.

c.) Bonds or other obligations of the school district.

d.) New Jersey Cash Management Fund - New Jersey the School Districts are permitted to
participate in the New Jersey Cash Management Fund. The Fund is governed by regulations of
the State lnvestment Council, who prescribe standards designed to insure the quality of
investments in order to minimize risk to the Funds participants. Deposits with the New Jersey
Cash Management Fund are not subject o custodial credit risk as defined above. At June 30,
2017, the District had no funds on deposit with the New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

As of June 30,2017, cash and cash equivalents and investments of the District consisted of the following:

Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Checking accounts $ 776,545

As of June 30,2017. the District had no other investments.

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the School
District's deposits may not be recovered. Although the School District does not have a formal policy regarding
custodial credit risk, NJSA 17:9-47 t seq. requires that the governmental units shall deposit public funds in
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
(GUDPA). GUDPA is a supplemental insurance progrcm set forth by the New Jersey Legislature to protect
the deposits of local government agencies. The program is adrninistered by the Commissioner of the NJ
Department of Banking and Insurance. Under the Act, the first $250,000 of governmental deposits in each
insured depository is protected by FDIC. Funds owned by the School District in excess of FDIC insured
amounts are protected by GUDPA.
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NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Custodial Credit Risk (Continued)

As of June 30, 2017, the School District's bank balance of $1,194,685 was exposed to custodial credit risk as

follows:

Insured $ 250,000
Uninsured and collateralized with

securities held by pledging f,rnancial institutions 944.685

Total $ 1.194.685

Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment.

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The District
does not have a policy that restricts investment choices beyond Title 184:20-37.

NOTE 4. OPERATING LEASES

The Dishict has entered into operating leases for copying equipment. During the year beginning July 1, 2017,
there was one existing lease on copiers for a term of five years. The future minimum lease payments are as

follows:
20t7-2018 $ 23.988

20r8-2019
2019-2020

2020-2021

$ 95,952

23,988
23,988
23,988
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity forthe year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows:

Begtuming

Balance Additions
Adjustments/

Retirements

Þding
Balance

Govenrnerfral Activities:

Caçilal As sets that ar e not being Depeciated :

Land

C-orstruction in Pro gress

Total Capital Assets ncÉ beirg Depræiated

Site Impovenpnts

Building and Building Irrprovemerfs

IMachineryandEçipnrent

Totals at Ffstorical Cst
Less Accurnrlaf ed Depreciation for :

Site Impovenpnts

Building and Impovenrcnts

ftuiprnert
Total Accurnrlated Depreciati sr

Total Capital As sets being Depræi * ed,

Net o f Accwntilat ed Depeciation

Governrnent Acti vities

C:pital Assets, Net

Brs ines s-type Activities - Equipnrcnt

Less Accurnrlafed Depreciation

B usin esst¡pe Activities

C-apital Ássetg Net

45,537

rc9q,M4 45,537 (1,467) 169U,n4

(t|,437) (t6,295) Qn,ß2)
(4263,159)

(448,483)

(4,839,374)

12,14y'.,740

(3951,43) (3tr,716)

Qy7,nq (s¿680) l,Æ7
(4#û,t50) (380,691) 1,67

12179,894 (335,ty)

$ 12,659,888 $ (335,154) $ - s12324,734

(8,017)
Q,032) $

7,032

83,132 S (8,017) $ - $ 75,115

Deprecidim eryense was charged togovernnrental functions

as follor¡¿s:

Unallæated

179,994 $ -$ - s r79.994

179,Ð4 l7g,Ð4

425,Ð6

159M,934

567,r14

425,996

1594,934
(t,467) 6tr,t84

To A-1

275,948

$n,u6)
$

To A-1

268,916

(193,801)

$ 380.691
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NOTE 6. GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the following changes occurred in long-term obligations:

Ending Due within Long-term
Balance One Year Portion

Beginning
Balance

G overnmenta I Activities:
General Obligation

Bonds Payable $4,125,000

Compensated Absences

Payable 170,106

Year Ending

June 30

Additions Red uctions

- $ (370,000) $3,755,000

(11,394) 158,712

$ 390,000 $ 3,365,000

158,7 12

Total Other Liabilities 54,295,106 $ $ (381,394) 53,913,7t2 $ 390,000 s 3,523,712

To A-1

A. Bonds Payable:

General obligation Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality
through referendums and retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness.

As of June 30, 2017, there exists a balance of outstanding principal in the 2010 and refunded 2004 bond
issues totaling $3,755,000. Combined Principal and interest due on the two serial bond issues outstanding as

of June 30,2017 are as follows:

Principal

$ 390,000
400,000
415,000
425,000
440,000
460,000
475,000
110,000
120,000
120,000
130,000
130,000
140,000

Interest Total

20t8
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030

131,700

119,525

107,025
94,075
80,825
67,125
49,000
30,000
25,600
20,800
16,000
10,800
5,600

521,700
5r9,525
522,025
519,075
520,825
527,125
524,000
140,000
145,600
140,800
146,000
140,800
145,600

3,755,000 $ 758,075 $

B. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued:

As of June 30,2017, the Board had no bonds authorized but not issued.

C. Capital Leases Payable:

The District had no capital leases during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

4,513,075
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NOTE 7. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOTJNT

A capital reserve account was established by the Township of Fairfield Board of Education by the original
1994-95 annual capital outlay budget, which was certified for taxes, for the accumulation of funds for use as

capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the
general fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the District's approved Long
Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual
general fund budget certified for taxes, or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any unanticipated
revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both.

A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained
either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections
authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A.19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C.6A:23A-14.1(g), the balance in the account
cannot atarty time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

In the 2001-02 school-year, the District established a Capital Reserve Account by board resolution.

During the 2014-15 school-year, the District transfened $337,314 into the Capital Reserve account and

appropriated this amount in the 2015-16 school-year. All of this amount was spent, with the exception of
$30,346, which \ryas returned to Capital Reserve and represents the balance as of June 30,2017.

The LRFP balance of local support costs of uncompleted capital projects at June 30,2017 is5844,237.

NOTE 8. MAINTENANCE RESERVE

A Maintenance Reserve account was established by the Township of Fairf,reld Board of Education by
resolution in the 2008-09 school-vear. At June 30" 2017 there was a balance of $10.000 in Maintenance
Reserve.
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NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - All required employees of the School District are covered by either the Public
Employees' Retirement System (PERS) or the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) which have been
established by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits
(Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will
be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a publicly
available financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for
the Public Employees Retirement System and the Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be

obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box295, Trenton, New Jersey,08625.

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS and TPAF:

Tier Definition
1 Members who are en¡olled prior to July 7,2007.
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 andprior to November 2,2008.
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2,2008 and prior to May 22,2010.
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after I[..4ay 22,2010 and prior to June28,20II.
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011.

Public Employees' Retirement System

The PERS is a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that was established in 1955. The PERS
provides retirement death and disabilþ, and medical benefits to qualified members.

Service retirement benefits of 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tiers
I and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement
benefits of ll60thof final average salaryforeachyearof servicecreditisavailabletotier4membersupon
reaching age62 andtier5membersuponreachingage 65.Early retirementbenefits areavailabletotiers I
and2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit and
tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for
each month that amember retires prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits
in accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age

60 if they have at least 25 years of service.

P.L.1987, c.384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS), respectively,
to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of
credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L.2007, c.103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of
post-retirement medical benefits through the PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension plans for
the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State employees and retired
educational employees. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance
with P.L. 1994, c.62. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a pre-funding basis to a
pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994. The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to
Chapter 126, P.L. 1992, which provides free health benefits to members of PERS who retired from a

municipality \Mith 25 years of service.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:154
and 43.38. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits that vest after 25 years of
service or under the disability provisions of PERS.
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Public Employees' Retirement System (Continued)

Contributions - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A.43:T5A, Chapter 62,P.L. of 1994, Chapter 115,

P.L. of 1997 and N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and contributing employers.
Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. PERS provides
for employee contributions of 7.06% through June 30, 2016 and 7.20% thereafter of employees' annual
compensation, as defined. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in PERS. The
cun'ent PERS rate is 12.46% of covered payroll. The District's contributions to PERS for the years ended
June 30, 2017, and20l6, were $79,993 and $80,910 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each
year. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory
death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums.

The total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $4,823,080. Payroll covered by PERS was $538,876 for fiscal
yen2017.

Information regarding contributions made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the District is not available.
Contributions to the system for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows:

PERS

Employees $ 38,799

District 79,993

Total S ryV92_

The District is billed annually for its normal contribution plus any accrued liability. These contributions were equal to
the required contributions for 2017, as follows:

Public Employees Retirement System

Fiscal

Year

Normal
Contributio

n

Accrued Total Funded bv

Liabilitv Liabilifv

--

State

Paid by

District

$ ___ql,gqz_ $ __ rgpgl_ $ N/A 79,993

Components of Net Pension Liability - At June 30,2017, the District's proportionate share of the PERS net
pension liability was $2,557,502. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016. The total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined using update procedures to roll
forward the total pension liability from an actuarial valuation as of June 30,2016, to the measurement date of
June 30, 2016. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District's actual
contributions to the plan relative to the total of all participating employers' contributions for the year ended

June 30, 2016. The District's proportion measured as of June 30,2016 was 0.008635% which was a decrease

of 0.00052Yofrom its proportion measured as of June30,2015.

2017 $ 12,000
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NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Public Employees' Retirement System (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - The District's 2017 PERS pension
expense, with respect to GASB 68, was $206,555. The District's 2017 defened outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources were from the followins sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of fnflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ +7,562 $

529,778

97,520
152,496

$ 754,853 $ 152,486

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recogruzed in pension expense as follows:

:

: Year PERS
2018 $ 100521

100,521
l4l,614
r21,972

57,746

Total $ S22"374

Additional Information - Collective Balances atJune 30,2017 and2076 are as follows:

Year 613012017 613012016

Collective deferred outflows of resources $ 754,853 $ 3 50,512
Collective deferred inflows of resources $ 152.486 $ t20,750
Collective Net Pension Liability

District's Proportion

$ 2,557,502 $ 2,054,136

Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual eamings

on pension plan investments
Changes in proportion
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Total

79.993

2019
2020
2021
2022

Thereafter

0.008635% 0.009r5r%
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NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Public Employees' Retirement System (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July l, 2015, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2016. This actuarial
valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

PERS

Measurement Date

Actuarial Valuation Date
Investment Rate of Return
Salary Scale (Based on Age):

Through2026
Thereafter

Inflation

June 30,2016

July 1,2015
7.6s%

t.6s% - 4.15%
2.65% - 5.15%

3.08%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Preretirement Mortality Table for male
and female active participants. For State employees, mortality tables are set back 4 years for males and
females. For local employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years for females. ln
addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a
generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-20I4 projection scale. Post-retirement
mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healtþ Male and Female Mortality Tables (set back 1

year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members and a one-year static
projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for service retirements and
beneficiaries of former members provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013
using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale. Disability
retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table (set back
3 years for males and set forward I year for females).

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 20ll to June 30, 2014. It is likely that future experience will not
exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these assumptions,
the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the larger
the impact on future financial statements.
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Public Employees' Retirement System (Continued)

Long'Term Expected Rate of Return - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate
of return on plan investments is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the
Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of
trustees and the acfuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
included in PER-S's farget asset allocation as of June 30, 2016 are summarized in the following
table:

Asset Class

PERS

Target Long-TermExpected
Allocation Real Rate of Return

Cash

US Treasuries

Investment Grade Credit

Mortgages

High Yield Bonds

Infl ation-Indexed Bonds

Broad US Equities

Developed Foreþ Equities

Emerging Market Equities

Private Equrty

Hedge Funds/Absolute Return

Real Estate @roperty)
Commodities

Global Debt ex US

REIT

Total

s.00%

1.50%

8.00%

2.00%

2.00%

1.50%

26.00%

13.250/o

6.50%

9.00o/o

12.50%

2.00%

0.s0%

5.00%

5.25o/o

0.87%

1.74%

l.79Yo

r.67%

456%
3.44%

8.53o/o

6.83Yo

995%
12.40Yo

4.680/0

6.91%

5.45%

-0.25Yo

5.63%

100.00%

Discount Rate - The discount rate as of June 30,2016 used to measure the total pension liability was
3.98o/o for PERS. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments of 7.65Yo and a municipal bond rate of 2.85yo as of June 30,
2016 based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will
be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be
made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State employer contributed
30Yo of the actuarially determined contributions and the local employers contributed l00%o of their
actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make projected fi.lture benefit payments of current plan members
through 2034 for PERS. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investrnents was
applied to projected benefit payments through 2034 and the municipal bond rate was applied to
projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.
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NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Public Employees' Retirement System (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following
presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers as of June 30, 2016, calculated
using the discount rate as disclosed above, as well as what the collective net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount ratethat is l-percentage-point lower (2.98%) or l-percentage-point higher
(4.98%) than the cunent rate:

District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability

I%
Decrease
(2.e8%)

Current
Discount
(3.e8%)

2,557,502 $

I%
Increase
(498%)

133 92r $ 081 6T9

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund

The TPAF was established as of January l, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 184:66 to provide
retirement benefits, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers'
Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with a
special funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New
Jersey on behalf of the District and the system's other related non-contributing employers. Membership is
mandatory for substantially alL teachers or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of
Examiners, and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified, professional
and certified.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66. TPAF
provides retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for
medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are
always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for 2Yo

of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of death before retirement. members' beneficiaries
are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts.

Contributions - The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In
accordance with Chapter 62,P.L. 1994, plan members enrolled in the Public Employees' Retirement System
were required to contribute 5.5% of their annual covered salary. Effective July l, 201I, however, in
accordance with Chapter 78,P.L.2011, plan members are required to contribute 6.5Yo of their annual covered
salary. For employees enrolled in the retirement system prior to July l, 2007, the increase is effective with the
payroll period that begins immediately after July 1, 2007. The State Treasurer has the right under the current
law to make temporary reductions in member rates based on the existence of surplus pension assets in the
retirement system; however, stafute also requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension
assets no longer exist.
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NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Teachers' Pension and Annuify Fund (Continued)

Contributions (Continued) - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 184:66 and requires contributions by
active members and contributing employers. Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 78,P.L.2011, the active
member contribution rate increased ftom 5.5Yo of annual compensation to 6.5% plus an additional lo/o

phased-in over 7 years beginning in July 2012. The member contribution rate was 7.34Yo in State fiscal year
2017. The phase-in of the additional incremental member contribution rate takes place in July of each
subsequent State fiscal year. The State's pension contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount
which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and anatnofüzation of the unfunded accrued liability.
Funding for noncontributory group insurance benefits is based on actual claims paid. For fiscal year 2015,the
State's pension contribution was less that the actuarial determined amount. Under curent statute, all
employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on-behalf of the District and all other related
non-contributing employers. No normal or accrued liability contribution by the District has been required over
several preceding fiscal years. These on-behalf contributions by the State of New Jersey are considered a

special funding situation, under the definition of GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.

The District was not required to make any contributions to the pension plan during the fiscal year ended June
30,2017 because of the I00% special funding situation with the State of New Jersey.

Trend Information for TPAF (Paid on-behalf of the Districtl

Year
Fundins
6130lt7
6/30n6
6l30lr5

Annual
Pension

Percentage
ofAPC

Net
Pension

Oblieation
$ N/A

N/A
N/A

Cost (APC) Contributed
$ 373,578 100 %

610,700
477,880

100
100

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the State of New Jersey contributed 5373,578 to the TPAF for
pension contributions, $311,276 for post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School, and $1,047 for long-
term disability. Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 184:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District
5240,425 during the year ended June 30, 2017 for the employer's share of social security contributions for
TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries.

Components of Net Pension Liability - At June 30,2017, the District was not required to report a liability
for its proportionate share of the net pension liability because of a I00Yo reduction for State of New Jersey
pension support provided to the District.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, defened outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions toldeductions from the TPAF's fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the TPAF. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. lnvestments are reported at a fair value.
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NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (Continued)

Pension Expense - For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Districtrecognized pension expense of 52,057,978
and revenue of $2,057,978 for support provided by the State.

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was determined by an

actuarial valuation as of July 1,2015, which was rolled forward to June 30,2016. This actuarial valuation used the

following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

TPAF

Measurement Date

Actuarial Valuation Date
Investment Rate of Return
Salary Scale (Based on Age):

Through2026
Thereafter

Inflation

Asset Class

TPAF

Target Long-TennExpected
Allocation Real Rate of Return

June 30, 2016

July 1,2015
7.65%

Varies based
on experience

2.50%

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset

class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30,2016 are summarizedinthe following table:

Cash

U.S. Government Bonds

U.S. Credit Bonds

U.S. Mortgages

U.S. Inflation-Indexed Bonds

U.S. High Yield Bonds

U.S. Equity Bonds

Foreigrr Developed Equrty

Emerging Market Equities

Private Real Estate Properly

Timber

Farmland

Private Equrty

Commodities

Hedge Funds - MultiStratery

Hedge Funds - Equrty Hedge

Hedge Funds - Distessed

Total

5.00%

150%

13.00%

2.0OVo

I.50o/o

2.00%

26.00%

t3.2s%

6.50%

5.25Yo

1.00%

1.00%

9.00%

0.s0%

5.00Yo

3.75Yo '

3.75%

039%
1.28%

2.76%

2.38%

t.4t%
4.70%

5.l4%o

5.91Yo

8.16%

3.64%

3.86%

439%
8.97Yo

2.87o/o

3.70%

4.72%

3.49Yo

r00.00%
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NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Teachers' Pension and Annuify Fund (Continued)

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.22%o as of June 30, 2016.
This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investment s of 7 .65Yo and a municipal bond rate of 2.85o/o as of June 30, 2016 based on the Bond Buyer Go
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an
average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed
that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The
State contributed 30Yo of the actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan
members through 2029. Therefore, the long-tenn expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to
projected benefit palnnents through 2029 and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit
payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - As indicated above,
TPAF has a special funding situation where the State pays 100% of the District's annual required
contribution.

Pcnsion Plan X'iduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits financial report. Information
on where to obtain the report is indicated at the beginning of this note.

NOTE 10. POST.RETIREMENT BENEF'ITS

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required Teachers' Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public
Employees' Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State
employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L.2007,
c.103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and
PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension plans for the firnding and payment of post-retirement
medical benefits for retired State employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2016, therc
were 110,512 retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits and the State contributed $1.37 billion on
their behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance with P.L.
1994 c 62. Funding of post retirement medical benefits changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go
basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 c. 126, which provides employer paid health
benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education or
county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $231.2 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 20,045
eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2016.
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NOTE 10. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes Arurotated,
Title 52, Article 17.25 et.seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the program are found in
Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. The State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and
Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for SEHBP. That report may be obtained from the Treasury website at:

http://www.nj.eov/treasurv/pensions/pdf/financial/20l5divisioncombined.pdf

NOTE 11. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below, permits
participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts defened under the plans are not
available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan
administrators are GWN Securities, Inc., Equitable, Lincoln Investment Planning and Prudential.

NOTE 12. INTERF'UND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 2017.

Fund Receivable Pavable

General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Capital Project Fund
Debt Service Fund
Payroll Fund
Enterprise Fund

s 396,362

77,586

94,590

$ 84,590
218,302

78,128
6l,ll3

116,405

$ 55&538 S 558.538

NOTE 13. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District participates in the Gloucester, Cumberland, and Salem School Districts Joint Insurance Fund
(GCSSDJIF). The Fund pools together member District resources, and, through consultation with insurance
professionals, purchases coverages, which include worker's compensation, properly, general, automobile and
school board legal liability, and boiler and machinery insurances.

As a member of the Fund, the Board is obligated for the prompt payment of any and all sums due to the Fund
in accordance with its bylaws, statutes or regulations. However, the Board is not obligated for claims and
expenses of another member District that arc not covered by the Fund, or for that portion of any claim or
liability which exceeds the Fund's limits of coverage.

A detailed schedule of the insurance coverages provided by the Fund is included in the statistical section of
the District's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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NOTE 14. LAND PURCHASE

On August 28,1996 the Board completed the purchase of a 62-acre tract of land on Buckshutem Road. The
Board's intention was to utilíze the land as future school building site. The purchase price of the land was
$156,750, which was appropriated by the Board from fund balance and encumbered in the general fi.rnd
during the 1995-96 fiscal year.

With the choice of the Board-owned property on Gouldtown-'Woodruff Road to build the new school also
having adequate land for possible future expansion, the Buckshutem Road property became excess. On
September 22,2004, the DOE granted the Board request for approval to sell the Buckshutem Road property.
When the pre-sale appraisal came in at only $116,000, the Board elected to hold the property in anticipation
of a fufure increase in value.

NOTE 15. LITIGATION

According to the solicitor, the district is not involved in any lawsuits incidental to its operations, of which the
total maximum exposure is considered material to the financial statements taken as a whole.

NOTE 16. F'IIND BALANCE

General Fund

Of the 5243,054 General Fund balance at June 30,2017, $0 is assigned for encumbrances;5472,379 is
restricted as Excess Surplus, of which $334,638 has been appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for
the year ended June 30, 2018; $10,000 is restricted for Maintenance Reserve, of which $0 has been
appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for the year ended June 30, 2018; $30,346 has been
restricted for Capital Reserve, of which none has been assigned and appropriated as anticipated revenue for
the year ended June 30, 2018; $30,130 has been assigned and appropriated as anticipated revenue for the year
ended June 30, 2018 and ($299,801) represents unassigned and an unrestricted deficit in fund balance. The
above amounts exclude the 19th and20th state aid payment received in July, 2017 inthe amount of $565,000.

Debt Service f,'und

Of the 516,473 in Debt Service Fund balance at June 30,2077, none has been assigned and appropriated and
included as anticipated revenue for the year ended June 30, 2017.

NOTE 17. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

In accordance with N.J.S.A. I8A:7F-7, as amended, the designation for Reserved Fund Balance - Excess
Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the NJ Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing
Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund balance at the flrscal
year end of June 30, if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their
subsequent years' budget. The excess surplus of $334,638 is to be appropriated in the 2017-18 budget and
8137,741is to be appropriated in the 20i8-19 budget.
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NOTE 18. INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF RELATED DEBT

The balance in the investment of capital assets of $8,603,172 on Exhibit A-l reflects the allocation of the
outstanding bonded debt as a liability, whereas the proceeds of the bonds will remain in the capital projects
fund until such time as the project costs are expended. At that time, the costs are transferred into the heading
of Capital Assets.

NOTE 19. DEFICIT F'UND BALANCES

The District had a deficit in Unrestricted fund balance of ($299,801) in the General Fund and ($143,806) in
the Special Revenue Fund as of June 30,2017 as reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis).
P.L. 2004, c.97 provides that in the event a state school aid payment is not made until the following school
budget year, districts must record the last state aid payment as revenue, for budgeted purposes only, in the
current school budget year. The bill provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in
the current budget year.

For intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue, expenditure,
asset, liability) should be in symmetry i.e. if one govemment recognizes as asset, the other government
recognizes a liability. Since the state is recording the last state aid payment in the subsequent f,rscal year, the
school district cannot recognize the last state aid payment on the GAAP financial statements until the year the
state records the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording the last state aid payment, the General and
Special Revenue Fund balances do not alone indicate that the district is facing financial diffrculties.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2, any negative unreserved, undesignated general fund balance that is reported
as a direct result from a delay in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year is not considered in
violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of corrective action. The District's general fund
deficit is less than the last st¿te aid payments of $565,000 and the special revenue fund deficit of $143,806 is
equal to the last state aid payments.

NOTE 20. TAX ABATEMENT

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax abatement is an agreement
between a govemment and an individual or entity in which the government promises to forgo tax revenues
and the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic
development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. School districts are not authorized by New
Jersey statute to enter into tax abatement agreements. However, the county or municipality in which the
school district is situated may have entered into tax abatement agreements, md that potential must be
disclosed in these financial statements. If the county or municipality entered into tax abatement agreements,
those agreements will not directly affect the school district's local tax revenue because NJSA 54:4-75 and
NJSA 54:4-76 require that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and
remitted to the school district.
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NOTE 20. TAX ABATEMENT (CONTINUED)

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has elected to raise their
minimum tax levy using the required local share provisions at NJSA 184:7F-5(b), the loss of revenue
resulting from the municipality or county having entered into a tax abatement agreement is indeterminate due
to the complex nature of the calculation of required local share performed by the New Jersey Department of
Education based upon district property value and wealth.

NOTE 21. SHORT.TERM DEBT

On June 23,2017, the District took out a short-term loan in the amount of $ 178,581, with interest at l.75Yo
and maturing on July22,2017.

NOTE 22. SUBSEOUENT EVENTS

There were no other events noted, between the year-end and the date of the audit report, requiring disclosure.

End of Notes to the Financial Statements
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FAIRFIELÐ TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
BTJDGETARY COMPARTSON SCHEDULE

GENERALFUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JTJNE 30. 2OI7

Original
Budget

874,176 $

66,232

50,000

Budget

Transfers
Final

Budget

874,176 $

66,232

50,000

EXTIIBIT C-I
SHEET T

Variance
Final to Actual

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

30,760
2,176

22,845

Revenues:
Local Sources:

Incal Tax Iævy
Tuition from Other LEAs Within State
lnterest on Investments
Miscellaneous

Total l¡cal Sources

State Sources:

Equalization Aid
Categorical Transportation Aid
Categorical Special Education Aid
Categorical Security Aid
Adjustment Aid
PARCC Readiness Aid
Per Pupil Growth Aid
Under Adequacy Aid
Professional Learning Community Aid
Host District Support Aid
Other State Aids:
Additional Non-Public Transportation Aid

Total State Sources

Federal Sou¡ces:

Medicaid

Total Federal Sources

Total Revenues

874,176 $

96,992
2,176

72,84s

990,408 990,408 1,046,189 55,781

Extraordinary Aid
On Behalf TPAF Pension Contribution (Non-budgeted)
On Behalf TPAF Post Retirement Contribution (Non-budgeted)
On Behalf TPAF Long-Term Disability Contribution (Non-budgeted)
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contribution (Non-budgeted)

5,131,539
158,123
292,489

I 68,55s
244,271

4,940
4,940

41,972
5,600
7,744

5,13 I,539
t58,123
292,489
168,555
244,271

4,940
4,940

41,872
5,600

7,744

5, I 3 1,539

158,123
292,489

168,5s5
244,271

4,940
4,940

41,872
5,600
7,744

2,610
t2,589

373,579
3t1,276

1,047

240,425

2,610
12,5gg

373,578
3tt,276

1,047

240,425

6,060,073 6.060.073 7,00r,598 941,525

19,763 19,763 t,826 (t7,937)

t9,763

7,070,244 8,049,613

(t7,937)

979,369

19,763 1,826

7,070,244
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FÁ.IRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENER-A,L FUND
FOR TTIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OI7

EXHIBIT C-I
SHEET 2

Actual

Variance
Final to Actual

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

s
2t4,754

t,tt2,z44
73t,292 2,246

9,53 r

17,473

3,713
44,435

17,145

11,092

Original
Budget

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budget

Expenditures:
Current Expense:

Instruction - Regular Program:
Salaries ofTeachers:

Preschool Inclusion
Kindergarten

Grades l-5
Grades 6-8

Home Instruction:

Salaries ofTeachers
Travel

Undisüibuted Instruction - Regular:
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
'Other Purchased Services
General Supplies

Textbooks

Other Objects

Total Regular Programs

Leaming and Language Disabilities:
Sala¡ies ofTeachers
Other Sala¡ies for Instruction
General Supplies
Textbooks

Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities

Behavioral Disabilities:
Salaries ofTeachers
Other Salaries for Instruction

Total Behavioral Disabilities

Multiple Disabilities:
Sala¡ies ofTeachers
Purchased Professional-Educational Services
Supplies

Total Multiple Disabilities

Resou¡ce Room:

Sala¡ies ofTeachers
General Supplies

Textbooks

Total Resource Room

Total Special Education

Basic Skills/Remedial:
Salaries ofTeachers
General Supplies

Total Basic SkiliVRemedial

211,256

1,102,221

746,431

4,800

2,000

10,500

32,583

7,500

2,500

3,498
r0,023

(12,893)

4,731

t6,73t
(6,651)
13,691

9,700
9,454

214,754

1,112,244

733,s38

9,531

r8,73r
3,849

46,274

17,200

1t,954

1,258

136

r,839

55

862

2,119,791 48,284 2,168,075 2,161,679 6,396

423,032

58,325

500
500

(34,58r)
250

3,430
(500)

388,451

58,s75

3,930

386,046

52,596

1,613

2,405

5,979
2,317

482,357 (3 r,401) 450,956 440,255 r0,701

52,241
49,764

74,550
(3,162)

126,791

46,602
t26,790
46,602

102,005 71,388 t73,393 173,392

52,150
25,200

(22,2r0)
(18,241)

806

29,940

6,959

80ó

29,940
6,959

77,350 (39,645) 37,705 36,899 806

t4t,t29
428

500

(12,488)
100

(500)

128,647

528
t26,t15

298
2,526

230

t42,057 (12,888) 129,169 t26,4t3

803,769 (t2,546\ 791,223 776,959

2,756

14,264

7,163
500

1,170
(355)

8,333

145

8,333

145

7,663 81s 8,479 8,333 145
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARTSON SCHEDULE

GENERALFUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Original
Budget

57,2rt $

500

EXHIBIT C.l
SHEBT 3

Va¡iance

Final to Actual
Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Budget

Transfers
Expenditures (Continued):

Current Expense (Continued):
Bilingual Education - lnstruction

Sala¡ies ofTeachers
General Supplies

Total Bilingual Education - Instruction

School - Sponsored Co-curricular Activities - Instruction:
Sala¡ies

Supplies and Materials

Total School - Sponsored Co-curricular Activities

School - Sponsored Athletics - Instruction:
Sala¡ies

Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Total School - Sponsored Athletics - lnstruction

Total Instruction

Undistributed Expenditures:
Instruction:

Tuition - Other LEAs within the State - Regular
Tuition - Other LEAs outside State - Regular
Tuition - Other LEAs within the State - Special
Tuition to CSSD & Regional Day Schools
Tuition to Private School for the Disabled - Within State
Tuition - State Facilities

Total Instruction

Attendance and Social Work:
Sala¡ies

Supplies and Materials

Total Attendance and Social Work

Health Services:

Sala¡ies

Purchased Professional & Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies & Materials

Total Health Services

Other Support Services - Student - Related Services:
Salaries
Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Total - Other Suppcrt Serv - Student - Related Serv

57,2t1 $

500
55,079 $ 2,t32

500

57 ,7ll 57,711 55,079 2,632

12,000

1,004
12,000

1,004

5,100
440

6,900

564

r3,004 13,004 5,540 7,464

r2,000

s00

500

12,000

500

500

10,200

5

303

1,800

495

r97

13,000 13,000 2,492 10,508

3,0r4,938 36,553 3,051,49r 3,010,082 41,409

15,000

r0,000
222,t96
48,708

4,500

150,291

4,000
(10,000)

8,867
(48,708)

165,291

4,000

231,063

4,500

164,182

231,063

4,500

I,109

4,000

300,404 104,450 404,854 399,745 5,109

56,647

500

(28,48r)
(t73)

28,166
327

28,166
327

57,t47 (28,654) 28,493 28,493

53,833

7,632
200

1,269

(te7)
4,809
(200)

Q67)

53,636

12,441

1,001

53,626
12,44t

958

l0

43

62,933 4,145 67,078 67,025 53

38,000 7t,056 r09,056 105,836 3,220

38,000 71,056 109,056 105,836 3,220
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2017

EXHIBIT C-l
SHEET 4

Variance
Final to Actual

Favorable
Actual (Unfavorable)

Expenditures (Continued):
Current Expense (Continued):

Undistributed Expenditures: (Continued):

Special Education - Extraordinary Services
Salaries - Aides $

Total - Special Education - Extraordinarv Services

Original
Budget

36,282 $

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budget

36,282 S 35,895 $ 387

36,282 36,282 35,895

Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Other Purchased Professional & Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies & Materials

Total - Other Support Services - Students - Regular

Child Study Teams

Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistance
Other Salaries

Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Other Purchased Professional & Tech Serv
Supplies & Materials

Total - Other Support Services - Students - Special

Improvement of Instruction Services/Other Support:
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Other Purchased Services
Supplies & Materials
Other Objects

85,1 l0 (37,549) 47,561 47,440

54,578
30,032

250
250

(tt,4z7)
(25,622)

(2s0)
(250)

43,151

4,410
43,030

4,410
t2t

t2t

750
500

38,557

14,879
447

18,780

16,759

8,012

38,557

14,878

447

18,780

17,509

8,512

38,557

14,799

447

18,780

17,5 l0
7,723

79

(l)
789

1,250 97,433 98,683 97,E16 867

500

500

2,300 92

500

500

2,300

s00

500

2,209

Total - Improvement of Instruction Services/Other Support
Services - Instructional Staff 3j00 3,300 92 3,209

Educational Media Services - School Library:
Salaries - OtherProfessional Staff
Purchased Professional & Technical Services
Supplies & Materials
Other Objects

Total Educational Media Services - School Library

Instructional Staff Training Services:
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Other Purchased Services - Travel
Supplies and Materials

Total - Instructional StaffTrainins Services

7,250 (5,962) 1,288

3,000

s00
3,750

(2,275)

(3,687)

725

500

63

725

433 67

63

l,158 130

IJ
1,000

250

1,250
(1,000)

(zso)

1,325 234 1,091

t,32s 1,325 234 1,091
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCIIEDULE

GENERALFUND
FOR THE FISCAL }¡EAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2OI7

Original
Budget

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budget

EXHIBIT C-I
SHEET 5

Va¡iance
Final to Actual

Favorable
(Unfavorable)Actual

Expcnditures (Continued):
Current Expense (Continued):
Undistributed Expenditures: (Continued):

Support Services - General Administration:
Salaries

Sala¡ies of Secretaries and Clerical
lægal Services

Audit Fees

Other Purchased Professional Services
Purchased Technical Services
Equipment Rental
CommunicationsÆelephone
Travel
BOE Other Purchased Services
Misc Purchased Services

General Supplies
Judgments Against School Dist¡ict
Miscellaneous Expenditures
BOE Membership Dues and Fees

Total Support Services - General Administration

Support Services - School Administration:
Salaries - Principals/Assistant Principals
Salaries - Secretarial & Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services
Travel
Supplies & Materials
Other Objects

Total Support Series - School Administration

Central Services

Salaries of Business Administrator
Salaries of Other Staff
Purchased Technical Services
Miscellaneous Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Interest on Current Loans
Miscellaneous Expenditures

Total Central Services

Admin. tnfo. Technology
Sala¡ies

Pu¡chased Professional Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Toúal Admin. tnfo. TechnologT

Required lrfaintenance - School Facilities
Cleaning Repair, Maintenance Services
General Supplies

Toøl - Require.d Maintenance - School Facilities

286,tts (24,870) 261,245 246,523

1s6,439

12,000
15,000

2,500
1,500

52,876

1,800

30,000
5,000
2,s00
2,500
4,000

(63,795)
38,524
5,076

(2,276)

(720)
443

(10,488)

2,715
(1,800)

tt,774
(2,004)
(1,076)
2,757

(4,000)

92,644
38,524
17,076
12,724

2,500
780
443

42,388

2,7t5

41,774

2,996
t,424
5,257

86,418 $
34,943
17,048

t2,724
1,578

200
197

42,330
1,574 ,

41,453
2,996

s,062

6,226

3,581

28

922
580
246

58
t,t4t

32t

1,424

195

14,722

109,6t7
3t,637

r,000

(52,4t0)
442

(1,000)

1,000

4,743

57,207
32,079

54,071
32,079

653

4,499

7,726

3,136

1,000

4,500

7,743

4,s00
3,000

347

I
t7

149,754 (47,225) 102,529 99,028 3,501

176,262

4,000

2,000

2,500
500

1,350

(83,835)

7t,064
l6,ll4
2,305
3,024
(s00)
900

92,427
71,064
20,114
4,305
s,524

2,250

92,427
70,815
18,879

3,781

3,959

1,620

249
1,235

524
1,565

630

t86,6t2 9,072 195,684 t9l,48l 4,203

37000
19,500

6,500
2,000

(8,000)

13,000

5,500

29,000
19,500

19,500
7,500

28,841
19,221

t9,028
7,366

159

279
472

t34

65,000 10,500 75,500 74,456 1,044

52,000

10,000
7,966

(2,848)

5.018

59,866
7,t52

58,409

4,088
1,457

3,064

62,000 67,018 62,497
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRTCT
BIJDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERALFUND
FOR TTIE FTSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Original
Budget

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budget

14,084

l9 r,080
5,500

35,476

5,307

195,000

EXHIBIT C-l
SHEET 6

Variance

Final to Actual
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

2,366
l9

122

759

431

Actual
Expenditures (Continued):

Current Expense (Continued):
Undistributed Expenditures: (Continued):
Other Operation & Maintenance - Plant Services

Sala¡ies

Purchased Professional & Technical Services
Cleaning Repair, Maintenance Services
Other Purchased Propefy Services
Insurance

Miscellaneous Purchased Services
General Supplies

Enerry (Natural Gas)

Energy @lecnicity)

Total - Other Operation & Maintenance - Plant Services

Care & Upkeep of Grounds

SaIa¡ies

Cleaning, Repair, Maintenance Services
General Supplies

Other Objects

Total - Ca¡e & Upkeep ofGrounds

Total - Operation & Maintenance - Plant Services

Security
Sala¡ies

General Supplies

Total - Security

Student Transportation Services:
Sala¡ies - Between Home & School - Regular
Other Purchased Prof. and Technical Serv.
Contracted Services - Aid in Lieu of Payments
Cont¡acted Services (Not Home/School) - Vendors
Contracted Services (Home/School) - Joint Agreements
Contacted Services (Special Ed) - Vendors

Total - Student Transportation Services

UNALLOCATED BENEFITS:
Social Security Contributions
Other Retirement Contributions - PERS
Unemplo5nnent Compensation

Workmen's Compensaf ion
Health Benefits
Tuition Reimbursement

Other Employee Benefits

TOTAI - UNALLOCATED BENEFITS

25,000
175,000

5,500

22,000
500

7,000

I 1,000

210,000

( 10,9 16)

16,080

13,476
(500)

(r,6e3)
(l 1,000)
(15,000)

I1,718
l9l,06l

5,500
?5 ?s¿

4,548

t94,569

456,000 (e,553) 446,447 442,750 3,697

54,586

17,500

3,000

400

54,586
17,500

3,000
400

54,391

t7,012
1,511

2t5

195

488

1,489

185

75,486 75,486 73,129 2,357

593,486 (4,535) 588,951 578,376 10,575

13,358
13,359

(13,358)
r3,358 12,790

13,358 13,358 12,780 578

13,400

23,320
25,000
18,000

284,350
t25,560

(855)

9,476

l,3gg
(2r,272)
100,854

13,400

22,465
34,476
19,398

263,078
226,414

12,827

21,025
34,207
19,269

263,078
226,414

573

1,440

275

130

489,630 89,60I 579,231 576,813 2,418

92,900
88,375

18,500

45,000
1,138,181

7,000
r2,500

1t,309
(7,082)

(r49,687)
1,000

(12,500)

104,209
81,293
18,500

45,000
988,494

8,000

r04,209
80,815

16,299

45,000

984,855

9,000

478

2,20t

3,639

t,402,456 (1s6,e60) 1,245,496 1,239,178 6,318
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FAIRF'TELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCIIEDULE

GENERALFUND
FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2OI7

$ 373,578 $

3t1,276
1,047

240,425

EXIIIBIT C-I
SHEET 7

(373,578)

(3tt,276)
(1,047)

(240,42s)

Va¡iance
Final to Actual

Original Budget Final Favorable
Budget Transfers Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Expenditures (Continued):
Current Expense (Continued):
Undistributed Expenditures: (Continued):

On-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions (Non-Budgeted) $
On-behalf TPAF Post Retirement Med. Contributions

(Non-Budgeted)

On Behalf TPAF Long-Term Disability Conrribution (Non-budgeted)
Reimbursement TPAF Social Security Conhibutions

(Non-Budgeted)

TOTAI - UNDISTRIBUTED ÐGENDMURES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - CI.JRRENT E>(PENSE

CAPITAL OUTLAY:

Increase in Capital Reserve:

Interest Deposit to Capital Reserve

Undistributed Expenditures - Equipment
Grades 6-8
Administrative
Custodial
Care and Upkeep ofGrounds
Security

Total Equipment

Facilities Acquisition & Construction Services
Assessment for Debt Service on SDA Funding

Total - Facilities Acquisition & Construction Services

TOTAL- CAPITALOUTLAY

TOTALÐ@ENDITURES

3,779,412 80,502 3,859,9r4 4,728,695 (868,78 l)

6,794,350 I 17,055 6,911,405 7,738,777 (827,372\

1,000

1,000

1,000

r,000

(r,000)
1,193

(1,000)

7,000

2,193

8,000

2,t93

7,385 615

4,000 6,193 10,193 9,578 615

157,686 157,686 t57,686

ts7,686 157,686 157,686

I61,686 6,193 167,879 167,264 615

6,956,036 t23,248 7,079,284 7,906,041 (826,757)
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EXIIIBIT C-I 

I

SHEETS .

FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
BTJDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERÂLFUND
FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2OI7 

,:

:,

Variance .,

Final to Actual .,

Original Budget Final Favorable :

Budget Transfers Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 
:
,

Excess @eficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) i

Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Tra¡sfer to Charter School
Transfer from Capital Project Fund - Interest

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess @eficiency) of Revenues & Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures & Other
Financing Uses

Fund Balances, July I

Fund Balances, June 30

s 114,208 $ (123,248) $ (9,040) $ 143,572 S 152,612

(114,208) tt4,208

(u4,208) 114,208

(9,040) (9,040) 143,900 ts2,940

664,154 664,154 664,t54

$ 664,154 $ (9,040) $ 655,114 $ 808,0s4 $ 152,940

328 328

328 328

RECAPITTJLATION OF FUND BALANCE:

Restricted Fund Bal¿nce:

Maintenance Reserve

Excess Surplus

Capital Reserve

Assigned Fund Bal¿nce:
Excess Surplus Designated for Next Yea¡'s Expenditures
Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures

Unassigned Fund Balance

Reconcilíation to Governmental Fund Statements (GAAP):
Last State Aid Payment not Recognized on GAAP Basis

TOTAL

$ 10,000

137,741

30,346

334,638

30,130
265,199

808,054

(565,000)

$ 243,054



_70_

F'AIRF'IELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. Á.ND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
F'OR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2OT7

aN,4UDTTED)

Original Budget Final
Budget Tra¡sfers Budget

2,066,897
1,541,235

(1,146,8r l)
t,54t,235

920,086
1,541,235 $

773,954

EXHIBIT C-2

Va¡iance

Final to Actual

(146,132)

ActuaI
REVENUES:

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction

Salaries

Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchased ProflEd. Services

Tuition
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies

Transportation - Field Trips
Other Objects

Total [nstruction

Support Services
Sala¡ies of Pa¡ent Laison

Salaries of PrincipalVAsst Priny' prog Dir
Salaries of Other Professional Services
Salaries of SecretariaVCleric¿l

Other Salaries - Security
Sala¡ies of Master Teachers

Personal Services - Employee Børefits
Purchased Professional Services
Purchased Professional & Educational Services
Other Purchased Professional Services
Cleaning, Repair & Maintenatrce Services - preschool

Rentals

Other Purchased S ervices

Contacted Transp Grants

Contacted Transp Grants - Field Trips
Travel

Miscellaneous Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Indirect Costs

Other Objecs

Total Support Services

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services:
Buildings
Instructional Equipment
Non-lnstructional Equipment

Total f,'acilities Acquisition and Construction Se¡vices

Total Expendinues

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Total Outllows

Excess (Deficiency) ofRevenues Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Sources (Uses)

2,066,897 394,424 2,461,321 2,3 I 5,189 (146,132)

629,802
354,780
20,000

19s,057

6s,970

19,000

7,441
(4s,aet)
15,676

(40,s89)
2,400

109,259

5,369
(r9,000)

637,243

309,489

35,676

t54,468
2,400

17s,229

5,369

63 1,980

308,727

35,676

154,468

2,400
178,s37

5,354
(3,308)

15

5,263

762

1,284,609 35,265 1319,874 1,317,142 2,732

68,583

25,241

34,225
26,239

62,s15

34r,528
45,885

5,000

15,000

52,000

14,500

69,500

5,000

5,000

2,000

6,000

t,072

32,000

17,054

42,6t3
12,8t0
(s,000)

I10,618
17,305

1,000

5,277

4,203
(6,s00)

45,459

(r0,es3)

(3,s00)

8,000

17,946

8,288

(30)

32,000

85,637

67,854

47,035

21,239

62,5t5
452,146
63,190

6,000

20,277

56,203

8,000

45,459

58,547

s,000

1,500

10,000

23,946

8,288

t,042

5,022

70,292

67,276

s8,s85

r8,606

62,258
439,710

27,292

56,203

7,963

61,850

56,377

5,000

ll0
3,057

1t,945
8,288

2,254

26,978

15,345

578

(l 1,5s0)

2,633

257

12,436

63,t90
(21,292)
20,277

JI

(16,391)

2,170

1,390

6,943

12,001

(t,212)

779,288 296,590 1,07s,878 962,088 I 13,790

1,500
1,500

62.s69 64,069
1,500

35,959 28,1 l0
r,500

3,000 62,569 65,569 35,959 29,6t0

2,066,897 394,424 2,46t.321 2,315,189 t46,132

3e4A242,066,897 2,46t,321 2,3 15,189 t46,132
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EXHIBIT C-3

FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE REOUÍRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BIJDGET - TO - GAAP RECONCILIATÍON
NOTE TO RSI

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDBD JUNE 30. 2OI7
(UNAUDITED)

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary rnflows and outflows and
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

General

Fund

Special

Revenue

Fund
Sources/infl ows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"
from the budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAp in that

encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related
revenue is recognized.

Current Year
Prior Year

lc-lì $ 8,049,613 IC-21 $ 2,31s,189

State aid payment recognized for GAAp statements in cunent year,
previousþ recognized for budgetary purposes. 545,3g4 146.244

State aid pa).ment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the subsequent year (565,000) (143,g06)

Total revenues as reported on the Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures
andchangesinFundBalances-GovemmenralFunds. tB-21 $ 1p29,997 IB-21 @:

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the tc-fl S 7,906,041 tC-21 $ 2,315,1g9

budgetary compa¡ison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but

not received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgelaryl purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
lor fi nancial rep orfizg purposes.

Transfers to and from other fi.¡nds are presented as outflows of
budgetary resources but a¡e not expenditures
for financial reporting purposes.

Net transfers (outflows) to general fund

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement ofRevenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds [B-21 $ 7,906,041 tB-2ì $ 2.3ls.l8e
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULES OF REOUIRED STIPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

PTJBLIC EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2016 2015 2014 2013

SCHEDULE L-l

District's Proportion of the Net Pension
Liability(Asset)

District's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset)

0.008635% 0.00915t% 0.009397% 0.009766%

s 2,557,502 S 2,054,136 $ 1,759,396 $ 1,966,431

District's Covered-Employee Pay'oll $ 538,876 $ 539,382 $ 589,032 $ 619.353

District's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll 474.60% 380.83% 298.69% 30I.35%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percenrage of the Total Pension Liability 40.l4yo 47.93% 5z.og% 49.72%

Note: The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the
calendar year-end that occurred within the fiscal year.
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SCHEDULE L-2

FAIRF'IELD TOWNSIIIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2016 20ts 2014 2013

Contractually Required Contribution g 79,993 $ g0,910 77,46g 73,5g3

Contributions in Relation to the
Contractually Required Contribution (79,993) (g0,910) (77,469) (73,5g3)

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ $ :

District's Covered-Employee Payroll $ 538,876 $ 539,3g2 599,032 619,353

Contributions as a Percentage of
covered-Employee Payroll r4.B4yo 15.00% 13.15% l l.Bg%
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SCHEDULE L-3

FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULES OF REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

TEACHERS'PENSION PLAN

2016 2015 2014 20L3

District's Proportion of the Net Pension
Liability(Asset)

State's proportionate share ofthe net pension

0.034818% 0.034161% 0.036360% 0.036295%

liability (asset) associated with rhe Disrricr $ 27,390,015 $ 21,591,343 $ 1.9,433,469 $ 1g,343,063

District's Covered-Employee Payroll

District's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) as a
Percentage of its covered-employee payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage ofthe Total Pension Liabilþ

Note: The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the
calendar year-end that occurred within the fiscal year.

8 3,282,6:73 $ 3,319,640 S 3,277,979 $ 3,460,71g

834.380/o 650.61% 592.87% 530.04%

22.330/o 28.7t% 33.64% 33.76%
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SCHEDULE L-4

Fairfield Township School District
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS

Teachers'Pension Plan

The School District was not required to make any contributions towards TPAF.

Note: This schedule is required by GASB 68 to show information for a 10 year
period. However, information is only currently available for four years.
Additional years will be presented as they become available.
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F'AIRT'TELD TOWNSIilP SCHOOL DISTRTCT

NOTES TO REQUIRED STIPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART III
Pension Schedules

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2017

Teøchers' Pensíon and Annuitv Fund (TPAF)

Changes of benefit terms. The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 184:66. TPAF
provides retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service,
except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions
of TPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of
service credit, become vested fot 2o/o of related interest eamed on the contributions. In the case
of death before retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the
members' accounts.

Change of assumptions. ,l/Lortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Health Annuitant Mortality
Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improvements based
on Scale AA. Pre-retirement mortality improvements for active membels are projected using
Scale AA from the base year 2000 turtil the valuation date plus 15 years to account for future
mortality improvement. Post-retirement mortality improvements for non-disabled annuitants are
projected using Scale AA from the base year of 2000 for males and 2003 for females until the
valuation date plus 7 years to account for future mortality irnprovement.

P ublíc Emplovees' Retírement Svstem (PERSI

Changes of benefit terms. The vesting and benef,rt provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:154. PERS
provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service,
except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions
ofPERS.

Change of assumptions. Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healtþ Male and
Female Mortality Tables (setback I year for females) with adjustments for mortality
improvements from the base year of 2012 Based on Projection scale AA.



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specific purposes.



-77 -

FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIALREVENUE FUND

COMBINING SCTIEDTJLE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND . BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OI7

Sub-Total

Per
E-l(2)

EXHIBIT E-I
(1)

Totals
2017

Title I Title II Preschool
PartA PartA Education

REVENI]ES:
State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITT]RES:
Instruction:

Sala¡ies ofTeachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchased ProfessionalÆduc Services
Tuition
Other Pu¡chased Services
General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Instruction

Support Services:

Salaries of Parent Laison
Salaries of PrincipalVAsst Prin/ Prog Dir
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Sala¡ies of SecretariaUClerical
Other Sala¡ies - Security
Salaries of Master Teachers
Personal Services-Employee Benefits

, Purchased Prof.Æducational Services

Cleaning, Repair & Maint Services

Rentals
Other Purchased Services
Contractual Transport.
Contractual Transport. - Field Trips
Travel
Miscellaneous Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects
Indirect Costs

Total Support Services

Facilities Acquisition:
InsFuctional Equipment
Non-Instructional Equipment

Total Facilities Acquisition

Total Expenditures

$ 1,541,235 t,54t,235
773,954$ 376,891 $ 58,734 338,329

376,891 58,734 t,541,235 338,329 2,315,189

t36,802
62,140
20,000

72,120

469,924
246,587

15,676

51,239
5,354

25,354

ts4,468
2,400

55, I 78

63 r,980
308,727

35,676
154,468

2,400
t78,537

5,354

29t,062 1,317,t42

5,022

70,292
67,276

58,585
18,606

62,258
439,710
27,292

56,203

7,963
61,850

56,377
5,000

n0
3,057

11,945
2,254
8,288

788,680 237,400

5,022

41,747

42,240 tt,573

37,085 5,414

1,482

67,584
25,529
33,092
18,606

62,258
378,708

6,000

56,203

7,963
19,35 I
56,377

5,000

110

3,057
tl,94s

772

2,708

25,493

7,189
21,292

8,288

85,829 58,734 752,555 64,970 962,088

35,959 35,959

35,959 35,959

$ 376,891 $ 58,734 $ 1,541,235 s 339,329 $ 2,315,189: ::
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENTJE FUND

School
lmprovement REAP

Grant 15-16

EXHIBIT E-I
(z',)

Totals
20t7

COMBINING SCHEDTJLE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2017

TDEA
B-Basic

REAP
r6-17

REVENUES:
State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruction:

Salaries ofTeachers

Tuition
Other Purchased Services

General Supplies

Total Instruction

Support Services:

Salary of Project Director
Salaries of SecretariaVClerical

Personal Services-Employee Beneflrts

Purchased Professional Services

Other Purchased Services

Indirect Costs

Total Support Services

Facilities Acquisition:
Instructional Equipment

Total Facilities Acquisition

Total Expenditures

$ 194,821 87,57r $ 4,614 S 51,323 338,329

t94,821 87,571 4,614 5t,323 338,329

25,354
154,469

25,354

t54,468
2,400

55,178

2,400

35,200 t9,978

t79,822 37,600 19,978 237,400

7,810

7,189

2,708

17,683

21,292

8,289

2,708
25,493

7,t89
2t,292

8,288

t4,999 49,977 64,970

4,614 31,345 35,959

4,614 31,34s 35,959

$ 194,821 $ 87,571 $ 4,614 $ 51,323 $ 338,329

-
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FÁ.IRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.20I,7

Budgeted Actual

EXHIBIT E-2

Va¡iance

740

4,445
l5

EXPENDITURES:

Instruction:
Salaries ofTeachers

Other S alaries of Instruction
Purchased ProfessionalÆduc Services
General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Instruction

Support Services:
Salaries of Program Directors
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries ofSecretarial & Clerical Assistants
Other Salaries - Security
Salaries of Master Teachers
Personal Services-Employee Benefrts
Purchased Professional & Educational Services
Other Purchased hofessional - Services
Cleaning Repair and Maint Services
Rentals

Contractual Service-Tran. (Bet. Home & School)
Contactual Service-Tran. (Field Trips)
Travel
Miscellaneous Pu¡chased services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total Support Services

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services:
Inshuction Equipment

Non-lnstructional Equipment

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services

Contribution to Charter Schools

Total Expenditures $ 1,s61,754 $ 1,54t,23s $

469,824

247,327

15,676

55,684

5,369

469,824

246,587

15,676

5t,239
5,354

793,880 788,680 5,200

68,554

25,564
34,225

21,239

62,5t5
378,708

6,000

20,277

s6,203
8,000

58,547

5,000

1,500

4,000

13,500

1,042

67,584
25,529
33,092
18,606

62,258

378,708

6,000

19,351

s6,203
7,963

56,377

5,000

110

3,0s7
I 1,945

772

970
35

I,133
2,633

257

926

)t
2,t70

1,390

943

1,555

270

764,874 752,555 12,319

1,500

I,500
1,s00

1,500

3,000 3,000

Available & Unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid Fr¡nds as ofJune 30, 2017

Add: June 30, 2017 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid
Iæss: 2016-17 Commissioner-approved Transfer to the General Fund

2016-17 Carryover -Preschool Education Aid Programs $

2016-17 Presohool Education Aid carryover Budgeted for preschool programs 2017-lE $

CALCULATION OF BUDGET & CARRYOVER

Total Revised 2016-17 Preschool Education Aid Allocation $ 1,438,066
Adú Actual ECPA,/PEA Carryover (June 30, 2016) l}7,79l

Add: Budgeted Transfer from the General Fund 2016-17

Total Preschool Education Aid Funds Available for 2016-17 Budget 1,565,857
Læss: 2015-16 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid (including

prioryearbudgetcarryover) 1,561,754

4,103

20,519

24,622

20.519

4,103 (10)

$ 20,sr9

(l)
Q)
(3)

(4)

(s)

(6)

(7)
(8)

(e)

Note: Since the 2016-17 Actual Carryover is more than the amount budgeted in 20Ú-lg,
the District should consider revising its 2017-18 Preschool Education program Budget.



CAPITAL PROJECTS FTIND DETAIL STATEMENTS

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and equipment purchases other than those financed by proprietary funds.



Proiect Title/Issue

Construction of new ElementaryÆvliddle School,
necessary onsite and offsite improvements,
fumiture, and equipment associated with
such improvements.

Demolition of Original Fairfield Elementary School

FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2017

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

-80-

Original
Date Appropriations

llt5l04 $ 5,238,509 $

2t28/t3 1,150,808

Expenditures to Date
Prior Current
Years Year

$ 6,389,317 $ 6,303,021

EXIIIBIT F.l

5,185,673 $ $ 52.836

l,ll7,348

Unexpended
Balance

June 30,2017

$ $ 86,296::

33,460
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EXHIBIT F-2

FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2017

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources

State Sources - SCC Grant
lnterest

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Demolition Services

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Transfer Interest to General Fund
Transfer to Debt Service Fund

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

328

328

328

(328)

86,296
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRTCT
CAPITALPROJECTS FUND

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT EXPENDITTJRES
PROJECT STATUS. BUDGETARY BASIS

CONSTRUCTION OF NEW ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOL
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2016

EXHIBIT F-2A

Prior
Periods

Current
Year Totals

Revised
Authorized

Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources

State Sources - SCC Grant
Bond Proceeds and Transfers
Transfer to Demolition Project
Transfer from Capital Reserve

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess (Defi ciency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

Less: Transfer to Debt Service Fund

Additional project information:
ProjectNumber
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bond Authorized
Bonds Issued

Original Authoriz¿tion Cost
Additional AuÍhorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion
Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Completion Date

4,981,000

Q83,t87)
600,000

4,98r,000
(283,t87)
600,000

4,981,000
(283,187)

600,000

5,297,913 5,297,813 s,297,8t3

5,185,673 5, I 85,673 5,297,813

5,t85,673 5, I 85,673 5,297,813

112,140 $

(59,304)

l12,l40 $

(59,304)

52,836

1460-050-02-0530
January 15,2004
January 15,2004

$4,981,000
$4,981,000
$5,481,898
($184,085)

$5,297,813

N/A
l00yo

August 31, 2005
December 8, 2005

s2,836
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES
PROJECT STATUS - BUDGET.A.RY BASIS

DEMOLITION OF ORIGINAL FAIRFIELD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JITNE 30. 2017

EXHIBIT F-28

Revised

Authorized
Cost

Prior
Periods

Current
Year Totals

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

State Sources - SCC Grant $
Local Share Transferred from SDA
Local Share Transferred from SDA

Total R.evenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Architectural Services

Other Professional Technical Services
Demolition Services

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

Additional project information :

Project Number
Grant Date

Original Authorization Cost
Reduction in Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage lncrease over Original

Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion
Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Completion Date

768,587

317,808
64,4I3

768,587

317,809

64,413

768,597

317,909

64,413

1,150,808 1,150,808 1,150,909

98,1 03

17,000

r,002,245

98, I 03

17,000

r,002,245

101,461

17,000

1,032,347

r,ll7,34g 1,117,348 1,150,909

33,460 $

1460-01-00-0366-01

February 28,2013

$r,479,31r
$328,503

$1,150,909

N/A
0%

February 28,2013

September 30, 2015

33,460 $



PROPRIETARY FT]ND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Proprietary Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the District's Board is
that the costs of providing goods or services be financed through user charges.

Food Services Fund - This fund provides for the operation of food
services in all schools within the School District.

TIIIS SECTION HAS ALREADY BEEN INCLT]DED IN STATEMENTS 8.4,8.5
AtlD B-6.
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENTERPRISE FUND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30. 2OI7 AND 2016

Food Service
Fund

EXHIBIT G-l

Totals
2017 z0t6

ASSETS:

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:

State

Federal

Other
Interfund Accounts Receivable
Inventories

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets:

Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation

Total Fixed Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:

Unearned Revenue
Accounts Payable

Total Cu¡rent Liabilities

NETPOSITION:

lnvested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted
Un¡estricted

Total Net Position

27O,830

268
24,152

2,346
84,590

9,041

?70,830

268
24,152
2,346

84,590

9,041

104,199

282
22,521

3,657

114,166

9,322

39L,227 391,227 254,147

275,948
(200,833)

275,948
(200,833)

27s,948
(192,8 I 6)

75,115 75,115 83,132

466,342 466,342 337,279

6,293
62,559

6,293
62,559

4,994

1,147

68,85I 68,851 6,031

75,115

322,376

75,1 l5

322,376

91,E15

239,433

397,491 $ 3g7,4gr $ 331,248
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRTCT
ENTERPRTSE FUND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30. 2017 AND 2016

Food Service
Fund

EXHIBIT G-2

Totals
2017 2016

OPERATING REVENUES:
Local Sources:

Daily Sales - Reimbursable Programs:
School Breakfast Program
School Lunch Program

Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursable programs:

Special Functions

Satellite Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries

Employee Benefits
Management Fees

Supplies

Miscellaneous
Depreciation
Cost of Sales - Reimbursable

Cost of Sales - Non-Reimbursable

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

Non-Operating Revenues:

State Sources:

State School Lunch Proeram
Federal Sources:

National School Breakfast Program
National School Lunch Program
National School Snack Program
Summer Program

Food Distribution Program
Interest

Total Non-Operating Revenues

Non-Operating Expenses and (Income):

Total Non-Operating Expenses

Net Income

Net Position - July I

Net Position - June 30

?5,483
19,289

25,483
19,289

29,318
13,145

22,400

44,772 44,772 64,963

142,600

22,101
28,280
23,775

16,330

8,017

230,493
21,543

142,600

22,101
28,280
23,775

16,330

8,017

230,493
21,543

103,230

20,419

28,280
17,230

lI,22l
17,449

248,910

493,139 493,139 446,639

(448,367) (448,367) (381,776\

5,084

169,520
286,256

2,775
10,829

39,644
s02

5,094

169,520
286,256

2,775

10,829

39,644
502

5,123

147,457

255,775

2,773

8,805

38,064

262

5I4,610 514,610 458,259

66,243 66,243 76,483

331,248 331,248 254,765

$ 331,248397,491 $ 397,491
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENTERPRISE FUND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
AS OF JUNE 30. 2017 AND 2016

Food Service
Fund

EXHIBIT G-3

Totals

44,772 S

(142,600)
(22,101)

(228,050)

44,772 S

(142,600)
(22,t0t)

(228,050)

20t6

64,963
(103,230)

(20,419)
(29t,640)

2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Employees
Payments for Employee Benefits
Payments to Suppliers

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Cash Received from State and Federal Reimbursements

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities:

Purchase of Fixed Asse¡s

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest on Investments

Net Increase(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July I

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
to Cash Used by Operating Activiries:

Depreciation
Change in Assets and Liabilities:

(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase)/Decrease in Interfund Receivable
(Increase/Decrease in Inventory
Increase(Decrease) in Accounts payable

Increase(Decrease) in Uneamed Revenue

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

(347,979) (347,979) (350,426)

514,108 5 14,108 457,997

514,108 514,108 457,997

(26,132)

s02

166,631 t66,631 81,701

104,199 104,199 22,499

270,830 $ 270,E30 $ L04,rgg

(448,367)$ (448,367)$ (38r,776)

8,017

(306)

29,576
281

61,411

1,409

8,017

(306)
29,576

281
61,41I

1,409

17,449

23,r39
97,365

(656)
(105,880)

(67)

100,388 l00,3gg 31,350

$ (347,979) $ (347,979) $ (350,426)
...":



FIDUCIARY F'T]NDS DETAIL STATEMENTS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for funds received by the school district for a specific
purpose.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the school district as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments anlor other funds.

Student Activity F'und - This agency fund is used to account for student funds held
at the schools.

Payroll Fund - This agency fund is used to account for the payroll transactions of
the school district.
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F'AIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30.2017
rWITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30. 2016)

Agency
Student
Activity Payroll

EXHIBIT H-l

Totals
2017 20L6

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Flexible Spending Reserve

Due to General Fund
Due to Student Groups

Total Liabitities

Total Liabilities and

Net Position

9,933 $ 194,955 $ 1g4,ggg $ 97,183

9,933 $

$

$ 194,955 $ 1g4,ggg $

57,933

10,617

116,405

3,103

57,933

IO,6T7

116,405

6,830

97,Ig3

48,261

14,363

32,343

2,216

$ 3,103 $

6,930

9,933 r84,955 194,ggg 97,183

9,933 $ 184,955$ 1g4,ggg$ 97,193
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EXHIBIT H-3

STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2017

Balance Balance t

July 1, Cash Accounts Cash Accounts June 30. I

2016 Receipts þgyfÞ!" Disbursemenrs payeÞle Z0t7 I

MiddleSchool $ 2,216 S 24,494 $ $ 13,674 S 3,103 $ 9,933

Totals S 2,216 S 24,494 $ $ 13,674 $ 3,103 $ 9,933
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
PAYROLLAGENCY FUND

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2017

Balance
July 1,2016

94,967 S

Additions Deletions

3,825,495 $ 3,735,507 $ 184,955

94,967

EXHIBIT H.4

Balance

June 30,2017

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Flexible Spending Reserve

Due to General Fund

Total Liabilities

48,261

14,363

32,343

3,736,378 $
5,055

94,062

3,726,706
8,801

184,955

57,933

10,617

116,405

$ 3,825,495 $ 3,735,507 $

94,967 $ 3,925,495 $ 3,735,507 $ 184,955



LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-Term Schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the
general long-term liabilities of the school district. This includes serial bonds outstanding
and obligations under capital leases.



Construction of an addition as well as 3ll/I0
undertake various improvements and
renovations to the Fairfield Township
Elementary School and to acquire the
necessary equipment and undertake
any necessary site work.

Issue
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FAIRFIELD TO\ryNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
scHEpuLE OF SERTAL BONpS

AS OF JUNE 30. 2017

Amount of Annual Maturities Interest Balance
Issue ñ Rate Jury 1,2016 rssued

Refunding of !ß104 School Bond
Issue for the Construction of a

new ElementaryA4iddle School, etc.

Date of
Issue

$ 2,000,000 31U18 $

3/tl19-22
3/U23

3n/24-25
3/l/26-27
3/t/28-29

3tu30

3,150,000 3lL7ltB
3t18t19

3n8/20
3t19t2t
3/20/22

3/21n3
3/2U24

Totals

9lt5/15

95,000

100,000

I 10,000

I 10,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

3.s00% $

3s00%
3.7s0%
4.000%
4.000%
4.000%
4.000%

295,000 3.000%
300,000 3.000%

315,000 3.000%
325,000 3.000%

340,000 3.000%
350,000 4.000%
365,000 4.000%

1,555,000 $

Balance
Redeemed June 30,2017

$ 90,000 $ 1,465,000

EXHIBIT I-1

2,570,000 280,000 2,290,000

$_ rto,ooo $ ,{lgoo
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2017

Original Budget Final
Budget Transfers Budget

423,250 $ 423,250 $ 423,250 $

Exhibit I-3

Variance
Final to Actual

REVENUES:
Local Sources:

Local Tui Lew

Total Revenues - Local Sources

State sources:

Debt Service Aid Type II

Total Revenues - State Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Regular Debt Service:

Redemption of Principal
Interest

Total Regular Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Excess @eficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balances, July I

Fund Balances, June 30

Recapitulation of Excess @eficiency) of
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Budgeted Fund Balance

423,250 423,250 423,250

423,250 423,250 423,250

370,000

143,250
370,000

143,250

370,000
143,250

513,250 513,250 513,250

513,250 513,250 513,250

(90,000)

106,473

(90,000)

106,473

(90,000)

106,473

16,473 $ $ __ ,!or, $ tuÍt3 s



STATISTICAL SECTION



Governmental Activities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted

Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Governmental Activities Net position

Business-Type Activities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net ofRelated Debt
Restricted

Un¡estricted

Total Business-Type Activities Net Position

Distric¡Wide

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted

Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total DistricçWide Net Position

Source: CAFR Schedule A-1

(Acc rual B a s ß of Ac countíng)
(LINAUDITED)

200E 2009 2010 20tl 2012 . 2013 --------nlî- 20ls 2016 2017
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FAIRFIELD TOTVNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

I,AST TEN F'ISCAI, YN,ARS

$ 10,561,634 $ 10,129,348 $ 9,4s9,843 S 12,312,8s7
463,246 1,097,886 2,724,746 977,545

Qs1,6s5) (sss,764) (73e,399) (338,219)

g 10,773,22s $ 10,671,470 $ 11,44s,190 g 12,9s2,223

s 132,496 $ 136,933 $ 136,s21 $ 123,109 $ 118,951 $ 1o4,ll7

$ lfJ59 $ r8rJ9* $ 1443æ $ lur.tu

-
$ 10,694,130 $ 10,266,281 $ 9,596,364 $ 12,436,006

463,246 1,097,886 2,724,746 977,s4s
(227,592) (504,899) (731,600) (318,97s)

$ 10,929,784 $ 10,859,268 $ 11,589,510 $ 13,094,576

24,063 50,865 7,799

s 7,872,940 $ 8,012,695 $

1,056,002 766,964
(287,s9s) (647,914)

$ 8,641,347 $ 8,131,745 $

19.244

s 1 I 8,951

7,979,4s9 $ 8,136,619 $
72s,006 43s,960
(s66,736) (2,27s,4s7)

8,137,729 S 6,297,122 $

s 7,991,89t $ 8,116,812

1,056,002 766,964
(287,59s) (63s,602)

$__jl6o¿e8 $_:w,nt

I ¿,J I¿

$ 1t6/2n

s 89,283 g 74,449 $

75,034 180,316

$ 164,317 $ 254,76s $

EXHIBITJ-l

8,488,233 $ 8,528,0s7
421,509 137,050

(2,294,934) (2,089,620)

6,614,808 S 6,s75,487

83,132 $ 75,115

248,t16 322,376

331,248 S 397,491

$ 8,068,742 $ 8,211,068 $ 8,s71,36s $ 8,603,172
578,762 435,960 421,509 137,050

(491,702) (2,09s,14t) (2,046,818) (1,767,244)

$___8,1s1801 $ __lls1j87 $ ___j¿Í,051 $__692s7:_
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Accrua I Bøs is of Accowti ng)

(UNAUDITED)

EXHIBIT J-2

2009 _ 2010 2011 2Ot2 20t4 2015 _ 2016 20t7

s 2,541,764 $ 2,985,335 S 3,662,220
505,488 595,850 223,476
t78139 145,32t t68,504
62,815 73,4't9 65,'194

4t8,562 5t8,224 408,837
703,819 780,552 l,r 10,300

270,388 375,465 3il,001
138,393 165,090 175,506
l8l,l34 198,516 232437
692,253 652,58t 632,481

3,336,418 S 3,367,316 $ 3,150,130 $ 3,t88,568 $ 3,123,441
410,858 497,594 494,964 506,45J 630,653
77,t34 159,433 166,931 195,664 19,200
72,567 70,424 85,260 84,956 87,796

48t,638 383,558 524,146
794,864 889,763 87t,9r2
324,894 276,763 280,209
156,602 2t0,345 208,57t
t64,482 207,822 204,782
58q466 553,394 581,351

55t,519 543,9'14

933,660 941,324
314,833 295,408

t93,Lt2 202,296
230,556 2t9,693

t,258,O57 577,560

t7,647 t3,418
524,481 460,2t9

2,075,641 2,043,158

353,504 270,156

351,304 365,553

$ 3,095,7t6 $ 3,478,821

668,579 '116,959

t8,97t 8,333

71,955 63,1 I I

623,880 399,745
t,023,367 906,367

274,270 246,523
156,795 99,028
222,990 265,937

537,585 518,376

15,700 t2,79o
462,568 576,813

3,454,425 4,408,981

298,284 292,45A

339,643 380,691

488,626

t,7tt,706
176,343

1,735

401,708

8,473,233

53t,587 513,955
t,389,774 1,546,52't

t69,733 183,21 I
1,735 2,235

373,354 36q363

508,839 526,476

1,550,801 1,798,555

339,t92 2t6,960
3,735 3,735

st7,26A 357,61 I

554,280

2,628,t8'l
322,4t0

365,805

E,956,596 9,596,847 9,319,758 9,5t9,749 10,438,938 10,780,355 9,793,849 n,264,728 12,494,923

Erpens6
Govemmt¿l Activitiæ

IrEtruction

Regulæ

Spæial Eduætion

Other Spæial Instucrion

Other I¡utruction

Support SeNi6
Tuition

Student æd Instrudi@ Related Seruicæ

Gene¡al Adminishatiw Servi6
Scl¡æl rAdminisrative Swie
Cør¿l Serviø & Info Teclnolory

Plæt Operalioß ild Maint{uæ
Sæurity

Pupil Tmponadon
Employæ Bøeñs

Inter6t on l¡ng-Tem Debt
Âûoftiatim of Debt Issue Costs

Unall@ted Depræiation md Anortiz¿tiq

Tota¡ Govement¿l Âcivitiæ Exprus

B$inss-Type Activiti6
Fæd Señiæ

Total B$in$eType Activitiq Expæe

Tot¿l Dishict ExptrG

Pmgmm Rwenus

Govemment¿l .Activitiæ

Operating Cmts dd Conúibutioru

Total Govemqtal Activitiæ Prcgm Reqm

Buinæs-Type Activitic
Chagæ for Seruicæ

Food Sepiæ

OpeÞting Gmts dd Cqtributi$

Total BEin6-TÞ€ .A.ctivitiæ Prcgm Remm

Total District PFgm Remu6

Net (Erpenæ/Rcvenæ

Govmmtal Activitie
Buinæ-Type Acivitiæ

Total Disticl-Wide Net E¡eæ

328,503

328,503

$ 8,801,736

338,786

338,786

37t,5t3 348,722 447,826 449,t75 474,964 425,630 M6,639 493,139

371,5 l3 388,722 447,826 449,t75 474,964 425,630 446,639 493,t39

s 9,295,382 $ 9,968.360 $ 9,708,480 $ 9,967,575 S 10,888,1t3 $ 11,255,3t9 $ 10,219,479 $ 11,711,367 s t2,988,062

s 2,t36,643 S t,797,U9 $_ 2,381,901 g 2,19'1,473 $ 2,369,566 $ 2,485,404 $ 2,721,094 $

2,t36,643 1,797,849 2,38r,901 2,197,473 2,369,566

2,s26,651 $ 4,t24951 S 4,888,909

2,485,404 2,721,O94 2,526,65t 4,124,951 4,888,909

72,819

25t,893

69,609

242,U3
E3,898

301,012

81,365

305,390
9t,2@

329,303

75,889

370.7æ
121,855

400,997

101,869

414,2@
64,863 44,772

458,259 514,610

324,7t2 352,452 384,910 386 755 420,503 446,653 522,852 516,078 (t2 ttt 559,382

$ 2,46r,355 $ 4150,301 $ 2,766,Ett g 2,584,228 $ 2,7m,M9 S 2,932,057 S 3,243,946 $ 3,042,729 8 4,648,073 S 5,448,291

$ (6,336,590) $ (7,1s8,747) $
(3,791) 13,666

$ (6,3,10,38r) $ (7,14s,081) s

636,7sO

368,435

sp38,741

2,632

9,720,585

32,457

Qt,4s8)

(7,214,946) $ (7,t22,2E5) $
13,397 (1,967)

(7,rs0,183) $ (7,953,s34) $ (E,0se,261) $
(27,323) (2,522) 47,888

(7,267,1e8) S (7,t39,777) $ (7,606,014)

90,448 76,483 66,243

(7,176,7s0' $ (7,063,2e4) $ (7,53q771)(7,201,549) g (7,t24,2s2\ S (7,177,s06) $ (7,956,0s6) $ (8,011,373) $

Gqcr¡l Revenuæ md Ofüer Chù96 ín Nct Pos¡fio¡

Gowqtal Activitiæ

P¡opqty Tu6 Iãied for Gaera¡ Purpcs, Net $
Tæ Isied for Debt Swiæ
UEGEided Grats ed Contibutiw
Tuition Reived
Adjustnflt tìo Fixed Aseb
I¡w6trnÐt E¿mings

Trufer b Charter Scl@l
MsælluæuÍræme

679,730 $ 696,863 $
37t,7E5 369,785

5,794,162 6,901,808

19,177 2,184
(276,647)

5,784 1244
(ls,3e4)

463,001 32,176

696,863 $ 696,863 S 710,800
509,980 5t4,917 514,661

7,374,t75 6,t58,940 6,092,595

175,856
1,401 1,814 18,690

46,899 6,113 (r2,7E0)

725,016$ 754,016$ 784176$ 874,t76
5t9,U2 475,379 415,379 423,250

6,639,326 6,@s,707 6,009,367 6,OÐ6,s26

(s,021)

6,564 6,447 2,0@ 2,504
(3s,706) (35,706)

69,780 69,840 186,481 169,837

15,778,142 7,056,92 7,988,666 8,629,318 7,378,647 7,499,A22 7,9¡9,001 ?,365,683 7,457,4ó3 7,566,693

1,921
t25J6 t7,573 (54875)

125,366 t7,573 (56,87s) I Otl

Total CFw¡milta¡ Activiti6

Buins-Type Activitiæ

Bwd Subsidy

Pdor Yø l¡Htory AdjEtmøB

Tot¡l B$ins-Type Ac{iviti6

Total Disrict-Wide

Chegc in Nea Position

Govmøøl Aaivitiæ
Buircs-Type Activitis

Toal Disüiçt-wide

Souæ: CAIRScheduleA-2

$ 15,903,s0E $ 7,074,565 s 7,931,791 $ 8,629,3t8 $ 7,382,s68 S 7,499,E22 S 7,919,00t S 7,365,683 $ 7!s7,463 $ .t,566,6s3

9,44t,552 I
12t,575

(rol,7ss) $ 773,720 g 1,507,033 $
3r,239 (43,478) (1,967)

22E,464 $ (4s3,712) S (140,260) S

(23,402' (2,522) 47,888
98,48s $ 317,686 $ (39,32r)
90,448 76,483 66.243

s 9,563,127 $ (70,51ó) $ 730242 $ r,s0s,o66 $ zos,o62 I (4s6,234) $ (92,372' S 188,933 $ 394,169 $ 26.922



General Fund
Reshicted

Maintenance Reserve

Capital Reserve

Excess Surplus

Assigned:

Maintenance Reserve

Capital Reserve

Desigrated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures

Excess Surplus Designated for
Subsequent Year's Expenditures

Year End Encumbrances

Unassigned (Deficit)

Total General Fund

All Other Govemmental Funds
Restricted:

Special Revenue Fund @eficit)
Capital Projects Fund

Assigned:

Debt Service

Total Ali Other Govemmental Funds
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
FUND BALANCES-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ModiJìed Accrual B asis of Accounting)

(UNAUDITED)

2008

ts7,8t9 $ 851,263 S 27s,210 $ 226,20s S 316,497 $ 267,000 $

2009 2010 2ott 2012 20ß

2s,441 (295,129) (488,405) (335,131) (2S4,01S) (414,s58)

$ rqïr $j56,r34 $__ (ã3,rrÐ$_s08,e26)-S__ yffi_$_lrtrsÐ $

$ (35,314) $ (74,124) $ (92,66s) $ (10s,899) $ (10s,s99) $ (113,166) $
346,684 344,087 2,543,206 857,239 845,693 613,130

Sou¡ce: CAFR Schedr¡le B-l

$ 31r,370 s 269,963 s 2,450,s4r $ 751,340

2015 2016 2017

10,000

17,500

J3 I,J L4

EXHIBIT J-3

$

10,000 10,000

334,638

135,000

(33 r,601)

s 739,794 $ 499,964

337,314 30,346

168,213 $ 78,575 $

(146,244) S (140,1s0) $

172,692 206,152

52.500 22.644

{
10,000

30,346
t37,741

7,045
(27s,784)

9,040

Q6s,2s4)

t18,770

$ 78,948 $ 88,646 $ 46,s25 S (41,037)

- -:

30,130

334,638

(2ee,801)

$___:Í,w

(146,244) $ (143,806)
86,296 86,296

t06,473 16,473



Revenues

Tax Levy

Tuition Charges

Interest Eamings

Miscellaneous

State Sources

Federal Sowces

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Inshuction

Regular Inshuction

Speéial Education Instruction
Other Special Instnrction

Other insÍuction
Support Services

Tuition
Student and Instruction Related Services
General Adminisuative Services

School Administative Services

Central Services & Info. Technolory
Plant Operations and Maintenance

Security

Pupil Transportation

Business and Other Support Sewices

Unallocated Employee Benefits
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Prïncipal

Interest and Other Charges

Total Expendinres

Excess (Defi ciency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expendinres

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Procþeds from NJSDA
Transfer to Cha¡ter School
Transfers (Net)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Debt Service as a Percentage of
Noncapital Expenditures

Sou¡ce: CAFR Schedule B-2
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
CHANGES IN FTJND BALANCES.GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

ßJNAUDITED)

2009 2010 zgtt 2ot2 20132008

$ 1,00s,185

2,632
32,457

(18,777)

6,660,070

512,633

. 8,194,200

2,541,764

505,488

178,439

62,8t5

418,s62
703,879

270,388

138,393

181,134

692,253

488,626

1,681,033

50,755

190,000

178,435

8,281,964

(87,764)

s 1,051,515

19,177

5,784
464,318

7,012,377

5't8,317

9,13 1,488

2,985,335

595,850

t45,321
7X,479

518,224

780,552
37s,46s
165,090

198,516

652,581

531,587

1,388,521

17,715

200,000

1?1,785

8,800,021

331,467

$ 1,066,648 $ 1,206,843 $ 1t211,780
2,184
1,244 1,401 1,814

32,176 46,899 10,034
7,286,581 8,812,507 7,s83256
1,997,12E 699,14'.t 945,250

10,385,961 70,826,791 9,7s2,134

497,594
3,662,220 3,336,418 3,367,316
223,476 410,858

168,504 77,134 159,433
65,794 72,567 70,424

408,837 481,638 383,J58
1,110,300 794,864 889,763
3ll,00l 324,894 276,763

175,506 1s6,602 210,34s
232,437 164,482 207,822
632,481 580,466 553,394

513,955 508,839 526,476

1,559,164 1,607,16t 1,839,633
1,525,858 3,395,820 120,916

t64,78s 285,000 29s,000

205,000 224,980 219,917

10,959,318 12,421,723 9,t20,760

8 1,22s,461

18,690

28,328
7,982,44s

595,554

9,850,478

3, I 50,1 30

494,964

166,931

85,260

524,146

8?1,9t2
280,209

208,57t
204,782
581,351

554,280

2,092,26s

675,631

305,000

209,661

10,405,093

(554,61 5)

s 1,244,058 S 1,229,395 $

6,564 6,447
69,780 69,840

8,71 1,066 8,183,291

649,354 623,755

2014

$ (87,764) S 331y'67 S (s73,357) S (1,s94,932) $ 62'1,4s3 $ (419,867) S

201s

10,680,822

3,1 88,5ó8

506,453

195,664

84,956

55 1,s19

933,660

314,833

793,112

230,556
532,119

17,647

524,881

2,070,638

886,7 13

320,000

199,042

I 0,?50,361

(573,3s7) (1,594,932)

4.4o/o

EXHIBIT J.4

2016

10,117,728 10,542,t79

3,t23,441 3,09s,716
630,653 668,579

19,200 18,971

87,796 71,955

s43,974 623,880

941,324 1,023,367
295,408 274,270

202,296 156,79s

219,693 222,990
s77,560 s37,585

13,418 15,700

460,219 462,568

2,245,887 2,376,839

290,858 483,484

385,000 360,000

t20,235 l s r,406

10,156,962 10,544,105

L(O <({

2,060

185,826

8,s12,291

582.447

4.2%

7017

$ 1,291,426

2,504

t69,837

8,525,655

175,780

10,771,202

3,4'Ì8,821

7'16,959

8,333

63,1 I 1

399,745

906,367

246,523

99,028

265,937

s78,376

12,780
576,8 l3

2,60s,214

203,223

370,000

143,2s0

10,734,480

36;122

3.4yo

63r,374

l1 qrtr 17^1^9.

4.1%

(3,921)

175,856

(19,540)

(21,568)

(69,539) (44,234)

(35,706)

(35,706) (3s,706)

(105,24s) $

(35,706)

4.80%

(79,940) S

4.70% 4.80%

36,722

4.8%



Fiscal Year
Ended

June 30,

2017

2016
201s
2014
2013

2012
2011

2010
2009

2008
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F'AIRF'IELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE

LAST TEN F'ISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Interest on

Investments

s 2,176
1,583

5,111

5,756

10,982

93t

380

1,507

32,457

SaIe of
Ramah Prior prior

Tuition Road Year Year p.O.

Revenue School Rent ,Refunds Adjustment

s 97,482$ $ $ 19S$
42,588 (4,1t7) 32,44I

200 14,264

600 38.70s

2,759 3,933

18,793

2,194
19,177 429,t62 14,314 17,058

2,632 (19,777)

Source: District Records

Atlantic
Electric
Energy
Rebate

$ 40,901
\) 444

37,124

22,960

21,058

23,300

EXHIBIT J-5

Misc. Total

$ 31,256 S 172,013

62,470 197,409

18,252 74,951

7,515 75,536
1,778 39,310

10,034 10,965

4,806 46,g99

29,503 32,067

3,467 493,695

76,312



-97 -

FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN F'ISCAL YEARS
(LLNAUDTTED)

TotâlFiscal Total a Net Direct
Year Ended vacant tr'arm Assessed public valuation school

June 30' Land Residentiat Reg. Qfarm Commercial Industrif,l Apartment Value Utilities Taxable R;l;;
2017 $ 16,830,200$ 252,057,800$ 11,396,500$ 2,533,000$ 29,632,900$ t,63o,2oo $ 344,200$ 314,429,800$ 69s,519$ 31s,125,319$ 0.9922016 18,269,100 250,62s,000 12,490,800 2,924,600 25,601,100 ,t,630,200 344,200 311,885,000 713,142 3t2,ss8,r42 o.st62015 19,017,700 250,704,700 12,843,500 2,887,500 26,053,500 1,630,200 344,200 313,481,300 743,541 3t4,224,84t 0.8752014 19,17s,800 241,140,500 13,644,400 2,863,100 2,689,700 1,630,200 344,200 25t,487,g00 734,782 282,222,682 0.87s
2013 19,555,400 25"t,576,200 14,020,900 2,774,300 26,080,900 1,630,200 344,200 315,982,100 1,0s7,s4t 317,040,041 0.8432012 19,49',1,200 253,567,700 13,290,100 2,819,800 2?,921,353 344,200 31.t,440,353 1,127,247 318,s67,600 0.8s4
2011 19,696,000 254,791,200 14,442,700 2,907,600 27,664,600 344,200 319,846,300 l,195,161 321,041,46t 0.812
2010 9,280,500 13?,378,900 7,210,200 2,788,300 t3,gg3,7oo 21g,4o} 170,871,000 8t0,417 17t,68t,417 1.615
2009 9,497,200 137,444,200 7,060,300 2,791,300 13,50?,400 21g,4o} 170,s19,800 806,828 17r,326,628 1.489
2008 9,240,700 135,374,500 7,071,000 2,827,400 13,469,800 2rg,4oo 168,202,800 827,880 169,030,680 1.447

Source: District records Tax list summary & Municipal Tax Assesso¡

Note: Real property is required to be æsessed at some percentage oftue value (fair or market value) established by each county board oftaxation.

Reassessment occurs when ordered by the County Board ofTaxation

a) Taxable Value of Machinery, lmplements and F4uipment of Telephone, Telegraph and Messenger System Companies

b) Tax rates are per $100

c) First year ofrevaluation

EXHIBITJ.6

Estimated
Actual
County

Eqrralized
Value

293,201,977

287,213,371

292,697,443

308,715,419

321,672,120

323,221,997

303,667,283

32s,356,98t

32s,356,981

290,722,820
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATBS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Rate Per $100 ofAssessed Value)

(LNAUDITED)

Overlapping Rates

EXHIBITJ-7

2.504

3.721

2.312

2.275

2.212

2.203

2.083

3.978

3.741

3.608

Fairfield Torvnship
Board ofEducation

Year
Ended

June 30,

2017 $

2016
2015

2014

2013
2012
20tt
2010

2009

2008

b

Gcneral
a Obligation

Basic Debt
Rate Service

Cumberland
Regional

High
School

Total
Direct

Fairfield Cumberland
Township County Total

0.282 $

0.255
0.246

0.227

0.222

0.22t
0.218

0.459

0.403

0.395

0.178

0.161

0.155

0.163

0.161

0.r63
0.160

0.244

0.220

0.228

0.460

0.416
0.401

0.39
0.383

0.384

0.378

0.703

0.623
0.623

0.532

0.500

0.474

0.485

0.460

0.47

0.434

0.912
0.866

0.824

0.429

0.43

0.407

0.383

0.393

0.384

0.375

0.673

0.545

0.521

1.083

2.37s

1.03

1.0t7
0.976

0.965

0.896

1.69

1.707

t.64

* First year ofrevaluation

Source: Dishict Records and Municipal Tax Collector

Note:
NJSA l8A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district c¿n submit for a general fund tax levy . The levy when added to
other components ofthe dishict's net budget may not exceed the pre-budget year net budget by more tha¡r the spending
growth limitation calculation.

a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the
Net Valuation Taxable.

b) Rates for debt service a¡e based on each year's requirements.
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS

20t7

EXHIBIT J-8

2008

Taxpayer

Taxable
Assessed

Value

% ofTotal
District Net

Assessed Value

Taxable

Assessed

Value

%o ofTotal
District Net

Assessed Value

South State, Inc.

Tips Trailer Park, Inc.
Laning Bros Farms, Inc.
Arthur Boss, MK Boss & MB McDowell

Cumberland Self Storage, LLC
NJ Oak Solar LLC
Taxpayer #1

Halka Nurseries, Inc.
Taxpayer #2
Taxpayer #3

Milner Corp.
Eagles Manor
40 Main Street LLC
Exelon (PSEG)

Total 21,941,800 6.960/o

4,901,600

3,935,600
2,5g3,goo
2,44g,loo
1,971,700
1,630,200
1,237,000
1,188,700

1,122,200
t022900

1.52o/o

1.25o/o

0.82%
0.78%

0.63%
0.52o/o

0.39o/o

038%
0.360/o

0.32o/o

0.00o/o

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00o/o

0.00%

0.00Y"

Source: District CAFR & Municipal Tax Assessor
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

EXHIBIT J-9

Collections in
Subsequent

Years

72,849

120,836

Fiscal Year
Ended

June 30,

Taxes Levied
for the Fiscal

Year

Collected Within the Fiscal
Year of the Lew

Amount %o of Levy

94.39% $

100.00%

100.00%

90.29%
100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

r00.00%

2017

z0t6
2015

20r4
20r3
20t2
20lt
20r0
2009

2008

1,297,426

I,259,555
1,229,395
1,244,059

1,225,461

I,2lI,7g0
1,206,943

1,066,649

1,051,515

1,005,195

r,224,578
r,259,555
1,229,395

1,123,222

r,225,461
I,2I1,780
I,206,843
1,066,649

1,051,515

1,005,195

$

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (AaF form)
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Governmental Activities
Business-Type

Activities

EXHIBIT J-IO

Fiscal

Year Ended

June 30,

2017 $

2016

2015
2014
2013

2012
20ll
20t0
2009

2008

General

Obligation
Bonds b

Capital
Leases

Bond
Anticipation Capital

Notes (BANs) Leases

Percentage of
Personal

Total District Income "

3,755,000
4,125,000
4,485,000
4,926,000
5,246,000

5,551,000

5,846,000
6,131,000

4,336,000

4,536,000

3,755,000

4,r25,ooo
4,495,000

4,926,000
5,246,000
5,551,000

5,g46,ooo

6,13 l,ooo
4,336,000

4,536,000

1.7%
t.8%
2.0%

2.zYo

?..4vo

2.sYo

2.7Yo

2.gYo

2.0%

2.lYo

Per Capita "

623

656
7t2
770

808

844
918

973
637

67t

Source: District CAFR Schedules l-l.I-2

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

a) See Exhibit NJ J-14 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal
income and population for the prior calendar year.

b) Includes Earþ Retirement Incentive Plan (ERIP) refunding
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDTTED)

General Bonded Debt Outstandine

EXHIBIT J-11

Per

Capita b

Fiscal

Year Ended

June 30,

General

Obligation

Bonds Deductions

3,755,000
4,125,000
4,495,000

4,926,000
5,551,000

5,846,000

6,131,000

4,336,000

4,536,000

Net General

Bonded Debt

Outstanding

$ 3,755,000

4,125,000
4,495,000

4,926,000
5,551,000

5,846,000

6,131,000

4,336,000

4,536,000

Percentage of
Actual Taxable

Value " of
Properly

r.28% $

1.41%

t.45%
t.53%
1.72%

r.80%
r.88%
1.49%

t.60%

2017

2016
20rs
2013

2012
20ll
20t0
2009

2008

s96
655

701

759

844

918

973

637

671

Note: Details regarding the dishict's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the
financial statements.

a) See Exhibit NJ J-6 for propefy tax data.

b) Population data can be found in ExhibitNJ J-14.

If a district has resources that are restricted to repaying the principal of debt outstanding,
these amounts should be shown in a separate column "Deductions" and be subtracted from the
total, and the schedule should be named ratios of net general bonded debt outstanding.
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF JUNE 30. 2017
(UNAUDITED)

EXHIBIT J-12

Governmental Unit

Debt Repaid with Property Taxes
Fairfield Township

Other Debt
Regional School District
County of Cumberland - Township Share

Subtotal, Overlapping Debt

Fairfield Township School District Direct Debt

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

Estimated
Estimated Share of

Debt Percentage Overlapping
Outstanding Applicable " Debt

$ 3,418,032 $ 3,418,032

7,857,000 t7.87% 1,403,694
9?,80t,762 3.373% 3,130,017

7,951,743

3,755,000

$ 11.706.743

Sources: Fairfield Township Finance Offrcer and Cumberland County Finance Office

Note: Overlapping govemments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic
boundaries of the District. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt
of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of
Fairfield. This process recognizes that, when considering the Districfs ability
to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and
businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that every
taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, ofeach
overlapping payment.

a) For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated
using taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining
the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within the district's boundaries
and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value.
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FAIRtr'IELD TOWNSIilP SCHOOL DISTRICT
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCALYEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Legal Debt Margin Cnlculation for Fiscal year 2015

Equalized Valuation Basis

2016 $ 290,828,982
2015 288,683,396
2014 292,37s,023

DebtLimit

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit

Legal Debt Margin

Total Net Debt Applicable to the Limit
as a Percentage of Debt Limit

2008 2009 2010

s 7,220,520 $ 8,391,152 S 9,172,s94

4,536,000 4,336,000 6,131,000

Average Equalized Valuation of Taxable Property

Debt Limit (3% of Average Equalization Value)
Net Bonded School Debt

Legal Debt Margin

Source: Abstract of Ratables and District Records CAFR Schedule J-7

a) Limit set by NJSA l8A:24-19 for a K through 8 district; other %o limits would be applicable for other districts

$ 2,684,520 $ 4,055,152 $ 3,041,594

63% 52% 67%

20tt 2012 2013

8 9,347,809 $ 9,401,299 $ 9,401,299 $

5,846,000 5,551,000 5,551,000

tAl $ _i71,887/01
[A/31 $ 290,629,134

tBl 8,718,874

3,755,000

tB-cl $ 4,963,874

$ 3,501,809

EXHIBIT J-13

$ 3,850,299 $ 3,850,299 $

63% s9%

2014

9,475,900 $

4,926,000

59%

2015 2016 2017

9,154,457 $ 8,891,833$ 8,718,874

4,485,000 4,125,000 3,755,000

4,549,900

52%

4 669 457 4166R't3

49o/o

s 4,963,874

46% 43o/o
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F'AIRFIELD TO\ryNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Personal
fncome

(Thousands

of Dollars) b

Per Capita
Personal

Income'

EXHIBIT J-14

Unemployment

Rate dYear Population a

2017

2016
2015

20r4
2013

2012
20rl
20r0
2009

2008

6,028 $

6,163

6,300

6,396
6,489

6,577

6,365

6,303

6,904
6,762

220,279,491

227,630,366
225,682,884

226,8:53,328

222,491,954

224,736,090

218,077,630

209,183,964

220,714,956

2I5,944,470

36,543

36,181

35,823

35,469
34,296
34,170

34,262

33,188

32,439

31,935

8.06%
9.20%
10.50%
11.50%

14.70%

15.40%

14.40%

15.40%

16.8%

r0.0%

t Estimate

Source:
u Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
b Personal income

'Per Capita
d Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
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EXHIBIT J.15

FAIRF'IELD TO\ryNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
PRTNCIPAL EMPLOYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
(UNAUDTTED)

20t7

Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total

Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment

NOT AVAILABLE

Source:



FunctionÆrogram

Instruction

Regular

Special Education

Other Special Education

Vocational

Other lnstruction

Support Services:

Tuition
Student & Inshuction Related Services

General Administrative Services

School Adminishative Services

Business Adminishative Services

Plant Operations and Maintenance

Securþ
Pupil Transportation

Food Service

Total
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
FULL.IIME EOUTVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

39.0

r 1.0

2.0

4.0

58.0

12.0

2.0

1.0

Source: District Personnel Records

5.0

2.0

5.0

0.5

1.0

0.5

59.0

12.0

2.0

6.3

2.0

2.t
,5

1.0

0.5

1.0

49.0

15.0

2.0

1.0

70.0

2.0

2.1

2.5

1.0

5 1.0

18.0

20t3 2074

87.4

8.2

2.0

2.8

2.2

1.0

<1 n

21.0

0.5

89.4 83.4

2015

8.0

2.2

5.0

1.0

5 1.0

18.0

EXHIBITJ-l6

0.2

20t6 2017

5.0

2.0

5.0

1.8

1.0

54.0

21.0

0.2

85.4

2.0

5.0

2.5

1.0

0.2

56,0

15.0

0.2

87.0

6.0

3.0

4.0

2.8

1.0

)(r
0.2

1.0

45.0

28.0

85.6 94.0

5.0

2.0

4.0

2.8

1.0

2.0

0.2

1.0

9.0

2.0

3.0

2.6

1.0

1.0

0.2

0.2

89.0 93.0
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EXHIBIT J.r7

" F'AIRF'IELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICTffi
(UNAUDITED)

PupitÆercher Ratio Average Averâge

Middre ""LiilL", n,åiå'I,,.. í;f#låîll, 
^:,:ï'.'"ï,'..Year Énrollment Expenditures' Pupil Change Staffb I(-E School (ADE) " (nna). Enrollment p

2017
2016
2015
2014
20t3
2Qt2
20tl
2010
2009
2008

627 $
662
626
620

602
613
616

585

622
607

10,018,007 $
9,549,2ts
9,360,869
9,344,606
9,214,801

8,484,927
8,515,923

9,063,675
8,410,521
8,052,774

Sources: District records

Note: Enrollment based on annual October district count.

a Operating expenditures equal tofal expenditures less debt service and capital ouflay; Schedule J-4
b Teaching staffincludes only full-time equivalents ofcertificated staff.
o Average daily enrolknent and average daily attend3nce are obtained from the School Register Summary (SRS).

t Schools combined beginning with the200612007 School year

1s,978 10.77%
14,425 -3.54%
14,9s3 -0.79%
1s,072 -r.54yo

1s,307 10.s9%
t3,842 0.12%
13,82s -10.77%

15,493 14.58%
r3,s22 1.92%
13,267 2.16%

56

63

)I
60

60
6t
87

t3
)U

I 1. 1:1

8.1:l
9.1:l
10.9:1

10. l:1
10.2:t
10.1:l
6.7:t
8:57:1

12.1 : I

607.7
661.8

629.9
613.0
598.0
598. I
617.9
592.2
625.7
605.9

560.6 -8.17%
628.9 5.06%
597.9 2.76%
586.5 2.52%
571.7 -0.03%
s76.1 -3.20%
590.1 4.34%
557.6 -5.36%
591.4 3.27%
576.t 4.21%

92,250/0

95.03%
94.92%
95,680/o

95.62%
96.32%
95j0%
94.16%
94.52%
95.09%



District Buildinq
Elementarv
Fairfield Primary School (1956)

Square Feet

Capacity (Students)

Enrollment

Middle School
Fairfield Middle School (1976)

Square Feet

Capacity (Students)

Enroll¡nent

Fairlìeld Townshin School
Square Feet

Capacity (Students)

Enrollment

Number ofSchools at June 30,2017
Elementary = 6
Middle School = 0
Combined = I

2008

N/A
N/A
N/A

2009

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

100,s94

622
622
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

* The Fairfield Primary and Middle Schools were combined into one new building beginning in the 200612007 School Year

Source: Dishict records, ASSA

Note: Yeæ oforiginal construction is showú in parentheses. Increases in square footage and capacity are the result of
any additions. Enrollment is based on the annual October distict count.

2010

N/A
N/A
N/A

100,594

607

607

(UNAUDITED)

2011 2012 2013

N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A NiA N/A

100,594 100,594 100,594 100,594

622 622 622 622
585 616 613 602

2014

N/A
N/A
N/A

20r5

EXHIBIT J-18

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

2016

100,594

622

620

NiA
N/A
N/A

100,s94
Á,J

626

NiA
N/A
N/A

2017

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

100,594

622
662

N/A
N/A
N/A

100,594

622
62't



Fairfield Twp. Primary School

Fairfield Twp. Middle School

Fairfield Township School

Total School Facilities

Other Facilities

G¡and Total

School Facilities
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F'AIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERALF'UNI)

U¡IDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES . REQUIRED MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES
11-000-261-XXX

Gross

Square

Footage

100,594

* The Fairfield Primary and Middle Schools were combined into one new building beginning in the 2006/2007 School Year

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(LINAUDITED)

2017 2016

$$

62,497

62,497

s__ a,4e7 $ y22L $_58{ZS__ 072t7 $_j8,2re $__j1555

572,952

2015 2014

$

572,952

58,092

58,092

20t3 20t2 2011

47,257

47,257

EXHIBIT J-19

58,279

58,279

44,555

44,555

2010 2009

$s$

47,657 42,188

47,657

s 47,657 $ 42,198

42,188

2008

s2,96638,287

38,287

$ 38,287 S 52,966

52,966



JUNE 30.2017
(UNAUDITED)

The Board of Education of the Township of Fairfield is a member of the Gloucester, Cumberland,
Salem School Districts Joint Insurance Fund (GCSSDJIF).

TheGCSSDJIFisaJointlnsuranceFundasdefrnedundertheProvisionsofNJSAlSA:l8Bl-10. TheFund
was formed by its member districts on July l, 1998 to provide a long-term alternative to the conventional
insurance market as a means of stabilizing the otherwise cyclical nature of insurance expenditures. It
achieves this goal by pooling together member district resources, deciding on what insurance coverage/s
it will offer and/or purchase and at what retention, and by hiring professionals to run the Fund.

The Fund's underwriting includes workers'compensation, property, general liability, automobile liability, crime,
educator's legal liability, boiler and machinery, and pollution legal liability insurances.

The coverage provided to members of the GCSSDJIF for the period of July l,2016 to June 30,2017
are as follows:

- lll -

FAIRF'IELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
INSURANCE SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT J-20
(1)

$ I 50,000,000 Per Occurrence
250,000 Per Occurrence

500 Per Occunence

"All Risk"

Replacement Cost
Actual Cash Value

Replacement Cost

125,000,000

None

1,000

500,000

250,000

s00

15,000,000

250,000

None

Statutory
250,000

None

L Property, Inland Marine and Automobile Physical Damages
A. Limit of Liability:

1. GCSSDJIF Self Insured Retention
2. Member District Deductible
3. Perils Included

B. Property Valuation
1. Buildings and Contents
2. Contractors Equipment
3. Automobiles

II. Boiler and Machinerv
A. Limit ofliability

1. GCSSDJIF Self Insured Retention
2. Member District Deductible

III. Crime
A. Limits ofliability

l. GCSSDIIF Self Insured Retention
2. Member District Deductible

fV. General and Automobile Liabilitv
A. Limit of Liability:

l. GCSSDJIF Self Insured Retention (SIR)
2. Member District Deductible

V. Workers' Compensation
A. Limits of Liability:

l. GCSSDJIF Self Insured Retention
2. Member District Deductible
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
INSURANCE SCHEDULE

JUNE 30.2017
(UNAUDITED)

VI. Educator's Legal Liability
A. Limits of Liability:

1. GCSSDJIF Self Insured Retention
2. Member District Deductible

VII. Pollution Legal Liability
A. Limits of Liabilþ:

l. GCSSDJIF Self Insured Retention
2. Member District Deductible

VII. Cyber Liability
A. Limits of Liability:

1. GCSSDJIF Self Insured Retention
2. Member District Deductible

Excess and Reinsurance Ca¡riers Involved
Properfy and Crime

EXHIBIT J-20
(2)

15,000,000

100,000

None

3,000,000

None
25,000

1,000,000

None
25,000

SPELLJIF, Selective Ins. Co. of America
Axis Surplus Insurance Company

Westchester Surplus Lines Ins. Co.
Alterra Excess & Surplus Ins. Co.

Ironshore Speciaþ Ins. Co.
Steadfast Inc. Co.

RSUI Indemnity Company
Liberty Surplus Insurance Corp.

James River lnsurance Co.
Maiden Speciaþ Insurance Co.

Arch Speciaþ Insurance Co.
SPELLJIF, Selective Ins. Co. of America
SPELLJIF, Selective Ins. Co. of America
SPELLJIF, Selective Ins. Co. of America

Travelers Insurance Company
AlG/Commerce and Industry Insurance, Co.

Lloyd's of London

General Liability and Automobile Liability
Worker's Compensation

Educator's Legal Liability

Group Purchase of Primary Insurance Coverage Carrier Array
Boiler and Machinery
Pollution Legal Liability
CyberLiabilþ



SINGLE AT]DIT SECTION



NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA
A P rofessional Asso cíøtiott

C e rtifi e d P ub Iíc Ac co untant s

991 S. Black Horse Pike
P.O. Box 799

Williamstown. NJ 08094

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCI.A,L REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINAI\ICIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AIIDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AI]DITOR' S REPORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Fairfield Township School District
County of Cumberland, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United St¿tes of America and the
standards applicable to frnancial audits contained in Government Audíting Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, and the audit requirements as prescribed by the Offrce of School Finance, Depãrtment
of Education, and State of New Jersey the financial statements of the governmental activities, the busiñess-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the Fairfield
Township School District, in the County of Cumberland, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board of Education
of the Fairfield Township's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 15, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Fairfield Township Board of
Education's internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the flrnancial statements, but not for thè purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fairfield Township Board of Education's internal control over
financial reporting. AccordinglY, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fairfield Township Board
of Education's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficíency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We considered the deficiencies described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be material, labeled 2}l7-l and}.

A' sígnificant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by,those charged with governance. We considered the
deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be signif,rcant, labeled 2017-3 and
4.

EXHIBIT K-l

(8s6) 629-3111
Fax (856) 728-2245
www.colavita.net
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identi$, all deficiencies in intemal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fairfield Township Board of Education's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compiiance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance, or other matters that a¡e required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey and are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as items labeled finding 2017-2,3 and 5.

Fairfield Township Board of Education's ResÞonse to Findin.ss

Fairfield Township Board of Education's response to the f,rndings identif,red in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Their response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Fairfield Township Board of
Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education and other state and federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its dishibution is not limited.

Respectfully submitted,

I\-IGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA, PA

Colavita. CPA
Licensed Public School Accountant

No.9l5
November 15-2017

NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA A Professional Associarion Ce rtifted Public Acco u nta nts
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY

UNIFORM GUIDANCE ÄND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

INDEPENDENT AIJDITOR' S RE.PORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Fairfield Township School District
County of Cumberland, New Jersey

We have audited the Board of Education of the Fairfield Township School District, in the County of Cumberland, State
of New Jersey, compliance with the types of compliance requirements described inthe OMB Compliance Supplement and
the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Fairfield Township School District's major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended ¡un" ¡0, iOiz. fir"
Fairfield Township Board of Education's major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor,s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Resnonsibilitv

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of
its grants applicable to each of its major federar and staie programs.

Auditorrs Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Fairfield Township Board of Education,s major
federal and state compliance based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred above. Vy'e conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally u"""pt.d in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Starìdards, issued by the Comptroller Generalof the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Codl of Federal Regulatíons part 200, (Jniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Princíples, and Audit Requirements foi Federal Awards (Uniforrr Guidance) uod u,
prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, Stot" of New Jersey, tlniform Guidance and New
Jersey OMB l5-08. Those standards, Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08, require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal and siate program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Fairfield Township Board of EducaiioJs compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and state
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Fairfield Townshþ Board of Educafión's compliance with
those requirements.

EXHIBIT K-2

(8s6) 629-3111
Fax (856) 728-2245
www.colavita,net
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Oninion on Each Maior Program

In our opinion, the Board of Education of the Fairfield Township School District, in the County of Cumberland, State of
New Jersey, complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

Management of the Fairfield Township School District's Board of Education is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective intemal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulaiions, contracts and grants applicable tõ
major federal and state programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Fairfield iownsfrip Board of
Education's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could hâve a direct and material effect on a major
federal or state program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal or state p.gr'* and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Fairfield Township School District Board of Education's intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over complianc¿ exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned funótions, to prevent or detect and correct
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timeiy basis. A material wealcress
in ìnternal control over compliance is adeficiency, or combination of deficiãnci,es, in internal control over compliance; such
that there is'a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state
program will not be prevented or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A sÌgnificant deficìency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control óvér compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a major federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in intãrnal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the f,rrst paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identi$ all deficiencies in internaf control over compliance that Ñgttt U"
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, additional material *"ukrr.r.", may exiit that
have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform Guidance and New Jersey
oMB 1s-08.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the Fairfield Township
Board of Education, th9 New Jersey State Department of Education, other state u*u.dirrg agencies and pass-througir
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specifieO parties.

Respectfully submitted,

NIGHTLINGER, COLA\rITA & V LPA, PA

Raymond Colavita, CPA
Licensed Public School Accountant

No.915
November 15,2017

MGHTLTNGER' col.AvrrA & vol.pA A professiona! Association Certified Pablíc Accountanß



FedenlCranto¡Þass-ThroughCrantor/ FederalProeramritre cFDANo. Number ÞroiectNumber À;"ì;, "i:å;åJ' ilJj:H:, i:il'å'j åff1 ."::',L, t^'J|lïtn t-oÉî,o"Ti'"' 
,^iiåi,i',1î,o,TmlU S Depânment ofEducationS Depânment of Education

Genml Fund:
Medical tusistance Program(SEMI) g3.77g lZO5NJ5MAP

U,S, Departm€nt of Ag¡iculturc pæsed

through State Department of Educahon
Non-Cash Assistance;

Food Distribution Program
Food Distribution Prcgram

Child Nutrition Clwter:
Cash Assistance:

National School Lunch program

National School Lunch Progrm
Sumrner Program
National School Snack Program
School Breakfast Program
School Breakfast Program

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. Depalment ofEducation Pæsed
Through State Dept. ofEducation:

Special Education Fund:

Title I
Title I
Title I
ltle I
Title II - A
TitIC II. A
TitIC II - A
IDEA Cluster:

I.D.E.A, Part B Basic
I.D.E.A. PartB Bæic
I.D.E.A. Pre School
I.D.E.A. Pre School

School Improvement Grant
REA.P

REAP
REAP

Total U.S. Department ofEducation

Total Federal Finmcial Awards

(A) Therc sæ no 6waa& pÉss€d thrcugh to sbrciepøts

Fedeml
FAIN

10.565

10.565

10.s55
10.555

10.559

t0.555
10.553

I 0.553

Grant or State

Unknom
Unknom

l7t NJ304N1099
l6l6lNJ304Nl099

l? lNJ304NI 099
l7rNJ304Nl099
171NJ304N1099

l6l6lNJ304Nt099

Program or
Awrd

N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
NiA
N/A

N/A
N/A

G¡ant Period

s t,826 7^^C6t3on7

84.010
84.010
84.010
84.0r0

84.3674
84.3674
84.367il

84.O27

84.027
E4.l',t3
E4.173

84.377^
84.358A
E4.3584
84.3584

40, I 7E
38,371

286,256
2s5,77s

10,829
) 77\

t69,520
t47 ls1

s0104160030
s0104150030
s0t04140030
s0104t30030
s3674160029
s367A150029
s367A140029

H02714,160100

H027A150100
Hl73Al60l l4
Hl73A¡501 l4
s377A160031
s358A161066
s358Al5 1066

s358A141066

7nn6-6t30n7
?t1/t5-6130/L6

71v16-6t30fi7
Tlvts-6t30116
7lvt6-6t30n't
?lvt6-6130^7
7nn6-6130il7
7^^5-6t30/L6

NCLB.l460r7
NCLB-1460r6
NCLB-146015
NCLB-146014
NCLB-146017
NCLB-146016
NCLB-146015

IDEA-146017
IDEA-1460t6

IDEAPS-146017
IDEAPS-146016

s377A16003 l
s358At6l 066
s358A151066
s35E4141066

Due to

$ (r4,loo)

(8,421)

400,260 7n^6-6t30/L'1
340,237 1nils-6t30^6
380,to3 7/vt4-6t30n5
354,766 7fin3-6t30114
62,237 7nfi6-6t30n't
48,437 7/uts-6ß0n6
53,036 7lvt4-6t30/t5

t94,821 7n^6-6t30n7
200,067 7/vts-6t30n6

5,637 ?fitt6-6t30^'t
5,546 7tvt5-6t30n6

t74,043 vt/17-8ßvt7
st,323 7iln6-9t30fi7
t1,246 1nn5-9t30/16
51,278 7/vt4-9t30n5

Cash

$ 4,367

Budgetary
Expenditures

$ t,826 $ (t,E26)

(22,s2t\ 4,36?

40,t78

27t,169
14,100

to,829
2,775

160,455

8,421

Budgetary

i_l'.'''21_r¡" ll¿ryL IryL2
See Accompanying Notes to Schedules ofFinancial Assistance

These funds were audited in accordance with the Unifom Guidance sinçe the total ofall grant expenditures exceeded S?50,000.

(59,7't4)
(3,442)

3,928

(14,999)

2,936

(3s,657)

(s,546)

(6,632)
(7,643)

(35,27',r)

(4,367)

(286,256)

(10,829)
(2,71s)

(r69,520)

Total

$ (1,826)

50'1,927

EXHIBIT K.3

(s09,o24) (509,024) (24,152) 4,90t

340,058
59,774

t0,229
14,999

I 88,961

35,65',1

5,546

50,992
t1,246
7,64J

(3s,2't't) $ 4,901
(4,367)

(286,256) $ (15,087)

(r0,829)
(2,77s)

(169,s20) (9,065)

(r33,693)

(376,891)

(58,734)

(194,821)

(E7,571)
(5t,323)

(4,614)

6,864

(376,89r) (36,833)

(3,442)

(58,734) (48,50J)

(194,821) (5,860)

(8?,571) (87,571)
(s1,323) (331)

(4,614)

72s,t05 (773,954)

3,928

2,936

$ (r,284,E04) $ (206,694)

(113,9s4) (t82,542) 6,864

$ I 1,76,5



General Fund:
Equaliation Aid
Equalization Aid
Transportation Aid
Transportation Aid
Special Education Aid
Special Education Aid
Security Aid
Secwity Aid
Adjustment Aid
Adjustnent Aid
UnderAdequacy Aid
UnderAdequacy Aid
PARCC Readiness Aid
PARCCReadiness Aid
Per Pupíl Growth Aid
Per Pupil Growth Aid
Prof Leaming Comm Aid
Host Distict Aid
Extraordinary Aid
Extraordinary Aid
Additiònal Non-Public Trmsp. Aid
Additional Non-Public Trmsp. Aid
Reimb TPAF Soc Sec Contrib
Reimb TPAF Soc Sec Contrib

Total General Fund

Special Revenue Fmd:

Preschool Ëducation Aid
Preschool Education Aid

Total Special Revenue Fmd

State Dept. of Agriculture:
Enterprise Fud:

Srate School Lunch Pgm.

State School Lunch Pgm.

Total Enterprise Fund

ProiectNo. Amount From/ro Receivableì Revcnue ilto. 'A,";ì,*'' n"i"r""¿ rirJ,io'rijå" i;::iïi:., i:i:ä ä,::,ï,

GrantorState orAward

-ll8-

FAIRFIELD TO1VNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICTsct*ou"r or 
"x*pNotru*-"$ 

gu siÀt- urNÃñõh;ÃsrsrAxcn rscHnoul.n nl
FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2OIi

t7495-034-5120-078 $ 5,131,539 7/t/16-6t30/17
16495-034-5120.078 s,088,222 7^/rs-6t3otr6 g(462,247)
t7495-034-5t20-014 158,123 7^^6-6t30^7
t6-495-034-5120-014 t57,3OO 7/t/15-6t30il6 (t4,2go)
t7-49s-034-5120-089 292,489 7/t/t6-6t30/17
16495-034-5120-089 286,612 7nt15-6/30n6 126.03S)
l7-495-034-5t20-OE4 t68,555 7/vt6-6t30/t?
16495-034-5120-084 166,335 7n/15-6t30/t6 (l5,1ll)
17495-034-5120-085 244,27t 7n/t6-6t30/17
16-495-034-5120-085 253,t31 7/vt5-6/30/t6 (22,996)
17495-034-5120-096 4t,872 7/l/16-6t30/t7
t6495-034-5120-096 4t,872 7/t/15-6/30/16 (3,804)
17495-034-5t20-098 4,940 7n^6-6t30^7
16495-034-5120-098 4,940 7t1t15-6/3}lt6 (449)
17-495-034-5t20-097 4,940 7/ltl6-6/30il7
t6495-034-5120-097 4,940 7n/15-6t30/16 (449)
t7495-034-5t20-t0t 5,600 7/vt6-6t30/17
17495-034-5120.102 7,744 7t1/t6-6t30n7
t7-100-034-5120473 12,589 7tvr6-6/30/L7
16-100-034-5120-473 28,390 7^^s-6/30t16 (28,390)
t7495-034-5120-0t4 2,6t0 7^/t6-6/30n7
16-495-034-5120-014 t,740 7nn5-6/30/16 (1,740)
17495-034-5094-003 240,425 7n/16-6t30/17
16-495-034-5094-003 254,691 7il^5-6t30/16 (1t,851)

Program Grant 
- _Bala¡ce at Junê 3Grant BalanceatJung3!,2016 Carryover BalanceatJune3g.2glTPeñôd 

_iã1i11ã---l*-¡ 
ñ..^¿^_-*,_ Eala¡ce at Junc 30, 2016

l'enod (Accomts Uneamed Due Ineamed Dueto (rwalkover) cash Budgetary ffi

Total State Finmcial Assistance Subject to OMB 15-08

State Finañsial Assistance Not Subject to OMB 15-08

On-Behalf TPAF Pension Contribution
On-Behalf TPAF Post Retirement Medical
On-Behalf Longterm Disability

Total State Finmcial Assistance

t7-495-034-5 120-086
16495-034-5 120-086

l7- t00-010-3350-023
l6-100-010-3350-023

1,438,066 7/tlt6-6t30/17
1,462,440 7n/t5-6t30/16 (t46,244) $ 127,79t

$ 4,6s3,110 $ (5,t31,539) $ (478A2s)
462,247

143,381 (158,123) (14,742)
14,290

265,219 Q92,48e) (27,270],
26,038
152,840 (168,555) (ls,7l5)
l5,lll

221,497 (244,271) (22,774'
22,996
37,968 (4r,872) (3,904)

3,804

4,47e (4,940) (461)
449

4,479 (4,940) (46t)
449

5,078 (5,600) (s22)
7,022 (7,744) (722)

(12,589) (12,58e)
28,390

(2,610) (2,610)
t,740

228,721 (240,425) (11,704)
I 1,851

1749s-034-5094-002
17495-034-5094-00 I
t7-495-034-5094-004

(587,365)

5,084 7^/16-6/30n7
s,123 7lvt5-6/30/16

(146,244) t27,791

EXHIBII K-4

Memo
Cumulative

Budgetary Total
Receivable Exoenditu¡es

373,s78 7Il^6-61301t7
3t1,276 7IUt6-6/30/17

1,047 7lt/16-6/30t17

(282)

$ (733,891) g r27,79r

(282)

g t27,791 1,294,260 (1,s41,235) (143,806) $ 24,622
(127,791\ 146,244

s (478,429) S 5,131,539

(t4,742) ts8,t23

(27,270) 292,489

(15,715) 168,555

(22;t74) 244,271

(3,904) 41,872

(461) 4,940

(461) 4,940

(522) 5,600
('t22) 7;t44

12,589

2,6t0

240,42s

6,31 1,159 (6,315,697) (591,903)

See Accompanying Notes to the Schedules ofFinancial Assistance

1,440,504 (1,541,235) (143,806)

4,816

282

s 7,7s6,76r S (7,862,016) $ Q3s,977) g 24,622

5,098

$ 373,s78 $ (373,578)
3t1,276 (311,2?6)

t,047 (t,047)

s 8,442,662 $ (8,547,917)

(5,084)

(5,084)

(268)

24,622

(565,000) 6,3rs,697

(268)

(143,806) t,s4t,23s

(143,806) t,54t,23s

$ (708,806) $ 7,862,016

5,084

5,084
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF AWARDS

AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
JUNE 30.2017

EXHIBIT K-5

NOTE 1: GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include federal
and state award activity of the Board of Education, Township of Fairfield School District. The Board of
Education is defined in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal and state awards
received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance
passed through other government agencies is included on the schedules of expenditures of federal awards
and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2: BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented on the
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are
presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note I to the
Board's basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR 200- Untþrm Administratíve Requirements, Cost Princíples, and Audit
Requírements for Federal Awards, andNew Jersey OMB 15-08. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.
The District has elected not to use the lO-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 3: RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC f,.INANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAp basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue
fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recogtttzed in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until
the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on a modified accrual basis with the exception
of the revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current budget year,
which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. l8{:22-44.2.For GAAP purposes payments are not recognized
until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the one or more June state aid
payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on
the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes
the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the one or
more state aid June payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. l8A:22-4.2
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF AWARDS

AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
JUNE 30.2017

(Continued)

NOTE 3: RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

EXHIBIT K-5

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is ($19,616) for the leneral
fund and $2,438 for the special revenue fund. See Note 2 (The Notes to Required Supplementary
Information) for reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modihed accrual basis of accolnting for the
general and special revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Boar.d's
basic financial statement on a GAAP basis as presented on the following page:

Federal TotalState
General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Food Service Fund
Total Awards and Financial Assistance

1,926 $6,991,992 $ 6,9g3,g0g
773,954 I,543,673 2,317,627
509,024 5.084 514.108r r ¡rrv9

$__l¿!1,89{ $_q,s!!J12 $ __2,8!lItl

NOTE 4: RELATIONSHIP TO F.EDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPoRTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and
state financial reports.

NOTE 5: F.EDERAL AND STATE LOANS OUTSTAI\DING

The Fairfield Township School District had no SDA Loan balance at June 30,2017 and the New Jersey
SDA is no longer holding cash for the project, as they transferred the balance to the District d*ing the year
under audit.

NOTE 6: OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Dishibution Program represent current year value
received and current year dishibution respectively. The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions, if
any, represents the amount paid by the state on behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2017.
TPAF Social Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer's share
of social security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2017.

NOTE 7: SCHOOL\üIDE PROGRAM FUNDS

As the District's Federal Programs are on a targeted student group basis, there are no schoolwide programs
in the District.

NOTE 8: ADJUSTMENTS

There \ryere no adjustments reflected on schedule A or on schedule B.
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EXHIBIT K.6

FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Intemal control over financial reporting:

l) Material weakness (es) identiflred?

2) Significant deficiencies identified?

Noncompliance material to basic
financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

l) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200 section
.516(a) of Uniform Guidance?

no

none
yes X reported

X yes

X yes

X yes

Unmodified

no
none
reported

yes X no

-yes 

x no

CF'DA Numbe(s) FAIN Number(s) Name of Federal Prosram or Cluster

84.367A s367A160029 Title II
10.553, 10.555, 10.559 l7lNJ304Nl099 ChildNutrition Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $ 750.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no
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FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR TTIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2OI7
(continued)

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results (continued)

State Awards

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $ 750"000

Auditee qualif,red as low-risk auditee?

lnternal control over major programs:

yes X no

EXHIBIT K-6

1) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses?

yes Xno

none
yes X repofted

yes Xno

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with NJOMB
Circular Letter 15-08

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program

17-495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid
17-495-034-5120-089 Special Education Categorical Aid
17-495-034-5120-084 Securiry Aid
17-495-034-5120-085 Adjustmenr Aid
17-495-034-5120-098 PARCC Readiness Aid
17-495-034-5120-097 Per Pupil Grou'rh Aid
17-495-034-5120-096 Under Adequacy Aid
17-495-034-5120-014 Transporration Aid
17-495-034-5120-101 Professional Learning CommunityAid
17-495-034-5120-102 Host Disrrict Supporr Aid
17-495-034-5120-086 Preschool Aid
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EXHIBIT K-7

FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE F'ISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2OL7
(continued)

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, mater¡al weakness, fraud, illegal acts, violations of
provisions of contracts and grant agreements, and abuse related to the financial statements for which
Government Auditinq Standards and with audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey that requires reporting in the Uniform
Guidance, New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 audit.

Findine:2017-l

Criteria or specific requirement:

In accordance with a complete internal control structure over payroll withholdings and deductions, the payroll
agency ledger should be properly maintained.

Condition:

The payroll agency ledger was not properly maintained during the year, requiring numerous adjustments to be
submitted for recording.

Context:

Numerous entries were recorded in the wrong account and the ledger was not reconciled to the bank account.

Effect:

Internal control was not adequate over the documentation of payroll withholdings and deductions.

Cause:

It did not appear that adequate training and supervision was devoted to the maintenance of the payroll agency
ledger.

Recommendation:

Procedures to maintain the payroll agency ledger should be revised, in order to assure that the ledger is properly
maintained arrd analyzed for accuracy. In addition, this task should be assigned to personnel that are properly
trained and supervised.

Management's resDonse:

Management is aware of the necessary procedures to be updated and followed.
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EXHIBIT K-7

FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF F'INDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,20t7
(continued)

Section II - Financial Statement Findings (continued)

Findine:2017-2

Criteria or specific requirement:

In accordance NJAC 6A:23A-16.2(f), expenditures are to be classified in conformity with The ttniftrm
Mínimum Chart of Accountsfor New Jersey Publíc Schools, 2008 Edition andother available reference
materials, such as the Budget Guidelines

Condition:

During our:test of transactions, it was noted that the district misclassified expenditures, as such, adjustments
were submitted and reflected in the financial statements.

Context:

Various purchase orders were misclassified in the Board Secretary's Report with respect to budget line items.

Effect:

As a result of the above condition, adjusting journal entries were submitted to the Board Office, as of June 30,
2017.

Cause:

A necessary internal control procedure involving a monthly review of the District Budget for proper coding of
expenditures w¿ìs not conducted during the 2016-17 school year.

Recommendation:

Districts should reference The Uniform Mtnimum Chart of Accountsfor New Jersey Publíc Schools, 200g
Edition and other available reference materials, such as the Budget Guidelines for ihe proper classifications
required to be in compliance with NJAC 6A:Z3A-16.2(f).

Manaqementf s resDonse:

Management is aware of the necessary procedures to be updated an followed.



_t25_

EXHIBIT K-7

FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE F',TSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017
(continued)

Section II - Financial Statement Findings (continued)

Findine:2017-3

Criteria or specifÏc reguirement:

N.J.S.A. 18A:22-8 requires budget transfer resolutions to be reflected in the Board Minutes.

Condition:

various budget transfers were not properly reflected in the Board Minutes.

Context:

Certain budget transfer resolutions did not align with transfer activity within the District Budget.

Effect:

Internal control was not adequate over the budget transfers.

Cause:

A necessary internal control procedure over the review and recording ofbudget transfers was not conducted
during fhe2016-17 School year.

Recommendation:

Procedures to record budget transfers in the Board Minutes should be reviewed and revised, in order to assure
all transfers are reflected in the Board Minutes.

Managementts response:

Management is aware of the necessary procedures to be updated an followed.
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EXHIBIT K-7

FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2OI7
(continued)

Section II - Financial Statement Findings (continued)

Findine:2017-4

Criteria or specifïc requirement:

The NCLB Title I grant agreement states that wages are to be reported in the Special Revenue Fund.

Condition:

Title I salaries were not properly recorded in the Special Revenue Fund, resulting in diffrculty in identiS'ing
District charges to payroll and the subsidiary ledgers. This includes the allocation of payroll charges between the
Special Revenue Fund and General fund as budget amendments were approved.

I

Context:

Title I salaries were not frrlly charged to the Special Revenue Fund.

Effect:

As a result of the above condition, adjusting journal entries as of June 30,2017,were submitted to the Board
Office. ,

Cause:

There does not appear to be sufficient staff with training to address the various aspects of maintaining wage
allocations that include amendments during the year.

Recommendation:

Procedures to record and report Title I grant salaries should be reviewed, revised and implemented, in order to
assure that the wage allocation worksheet is updated based on amended budgets.

Managementrs resÞonse:

Management is aware of the necessary procedures to be updated an followed.
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EXHIBIT K-7

FAIRF'IELD TO\ryNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCTIEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2OI7
(continued)

Section II - tr'inancial Statement Findings (continued)

Findine:2017-5

Criteria or specific requirement:

The New Jersey Department of Agriculture requires a School Food Authority to maintain a nonprofit School
Food Service. The nonprofit status of the School Food Service is determined by evaluating net cash resources,
which may not exceed three months average expenditures.

Condition:

Net cash resources in the Food Service Fund exceeded three months average expenditures.

Context:

Utilizing the USDA net cash resource calculation form, it was determined the District's net cash resources
exceeded three months average expenditures by $167,798, as of June 30,2017.

Effect:

Violation of New Jersey Department of Agriculfure requirements.

Cause:

Planned capital expenditures were delayed into the next school year and paid in August 2017.

Recommendation:

The Board should implement a corrective action plan to effectively reduce the net cash resources on hand in the
Food Service Fund through capital expenditure or otherwise.

Managementts resDonse:

Management is aware of the necessary procedures to be updated an followed.
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EXHIBIT K-7

FAIRF'IELD TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

F'OR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2OI7
(continued)

Section III - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the audit findings requ¡red to be reported by 2 CFR 200 section .516 of the
Uniform Guidance Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requírements for Federal
Awards, and New Jersey OMB Circular Letter 15-08, as applicable, for State Financial Assistance.

FEDERAL A\ryARDS

X'indins: NONE
Information on the federal program:
Criteria or specific requirement:
Condition:
Questioned Costs:
Context:
Effect:
Cause:
Recommendation:
Managementrs response:

STATE A\ryARDS

Finding: NONE
Information on the state program:
Criteria or specific requirement:
Condition:
Questioned Costs:
Context:
Effect:
Cause:
Recommendation:
Managementrs resDonse:
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EXHIBIT K-8
FAIRFIELD TO\ryNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT F'INDINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,20L7

This section identifies the status of prior - year findings related to the basic financial statements and Federal
Awards and State Financial Assistance that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of
Government Auditing Standards, US OMB Uniþrm Admínistrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audít
Requirements for Federal Awards section.5ll(a)(b) and New Jersey OMB's Circular Lètter 15-08, as
applicable, for State Financial Assistance.

Findine:2016-1

Condition:

Numerous adjustments to the general ledger were required to be submitted as part of the audit.

Current Status: Unresoh,ed, see finding Z0l7-2.

Findine:2016-2

Condition:

The records of the Board Secretary were not in agreement with the reconciled cash balance as determined durins
the audit.

Current Status: Resolved

Findine:2016-3

Condition:

The payroll agency fgdger was not properly maintained during the year, requiring numerous adjustments to be
submitted for recording.

Current Status: Unresolved, see finding 2017-1.

Findine:2016-4

Condition:

Net cash resources in the Food Service Fund exceeded three months average expenditures.

Current Status: Unresolved, see finding Z0l7-5.


